MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, September 26, 2024 — 2:00 P. M.

WELCOME TO THE MIRA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING. MIRA VALUES YOUR ATTENDANCE AND REQUESTS
THAT SPEAKERS APPEARING UNDER THE PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION OF THE AGENDA LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS
AND/OR PRESENTATION TO MATTERS UNDER THE BOARD’S JURISDICTION. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK TO ANY ITEM
ON THE AGENDA, PLEASE WAIT UNTIL THAT ITEM HAS BEEN CALLED. PERSONS ADDRESSING THE BOARD SHALL
HAVE FIVE MINUTES TO COMPLETE HIS/HER COMMENTS ON EACH AGENDA ITEM.

Welcome - Call Business Meeting to Order 2:00 P.M.
Pledge of Allegiance

Introductions | Announcements

Public Comments

L. Meeting Minutes
A. Minutes of August 22, 2024, MIRA Board Meeting

Il. A. Projects and Programs Updates and Status Report (Executive Director Verbal Report)

L. Development Presentations
A. 245 Leleune Drive, Merritt Island Tax Account #2426699
(Rezoning Request RU-1-11 to RU-2-8
B. 120 S. Banana River Drive Merritt Island, Florida 11 Single Family Homes
(Rezoning Request BU-2 to RU1-7 Tax Account Numbers:
2438912;2438913;2438914;2438915;2438917&2438918

Iv. New Business
A. Merritt Park Place Grove Street Parking Lot Acquisition for Public Purposes | Tax Acct#2427087

V. Ongoing/0ld Business
A. Transit Stop Improvements (Simme Seating Locations)
B. 258 N. Grove Street | Merritt Istand, FL 32953 (Tradewinds Builders (Facade Progress

Report & Site Tour)

VI. Board Reports and Presentations:
Marcus Herman, Chairman
Cynthia Wall, Vice Chairman
Andy Barber, Board Member
Corey Mecagni, Board Member
Nicole Morgan, Board Member
Jack Smink, Board Member
Jack Ratterman, Board Member
Larry Lallo, Executive Director
Stefani Maduskuie, Community Redevelopment Manager
Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney

Next Board Meeting (October 31, 2024) 2:00 P.M.
Adjourn



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting
September 26, 2024

ITEMI. A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Meeting Minutes

PROJECT: Minutes of August 22, 2024

Requested Action: Review and Approve

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: Minutes of August 22, 2024




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes August 22, 2024 - 2:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT

Marcus Herman, Chair

Nicole Morgan, Board Member

Corey Mecagni, Board Member

Jack Ratterman, Board Member

Cynthia Wall, Vice Chair

Jack Smink, Board Member

Andy Barber, Board Member Present via Phone

MEMBERS ABSENT

AGENCY STAFF

Larry Lallo, Executive Director

Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney
Cheryl Hurren, Exe. Admin. Assistant/Clerk

GUESTS

Donn Weaver, Veterans Memorial Center

Don Pearsall, Brevard Veterans Council

Kika Golan, D2 Office

Susan Smith, D2 Office

Manuel E. Baten, 245 LeJeune Dr. for Item 1I1.C

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to open at 2:00 P.M. Member Smink led the pledge.

PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Chairman Herman introduced Doug Green of 255 Manor Dr., who spoke to the Board regarding the
SJIRWMD Grant. Mr. Green explained to the Board that he dba, as Cocoa Beach Plumbing, Inc., applied
for the St. John’s River Water Management District (SJRWMD) Cone Road Septic to Sewer Grant in
December 2019. During that time we were going through the Pandemic and the shutdown, he came
down with a life-threatening case of COVID-19 and almost died, leaving him with debilitating challenges.
The work was completed and substantiated by the Natural Resources Management Department’s Save
our Indian River Lagoon (SOIRL) paperwork. He received an inquiry about the status of his application
from Executive Director Lallo as to why it never completed final processing for the SIRWMD and FDEP
Grant reimbursement. Mr. Green said he attended the meeting today to see if he would be eligible for
payment. After the discussion, the board asked legal counsel to review the circumstances and the
paperwork to obtain a legal opinion regarding payment since the SIRWMD and FDEP grants have been
closed.

I.  Meeting Minutes
A. Approval of the July 25, 2024, meeting minutes.

1of4



Board Member Barber moved to approve the July 25, 2024, meeting minutes, seconded by Member
Morgan. The motion was unanimously approved.

Il.  Projects and Programs Updates and Status Report: Director’s Verbal Report

e Director Lallo informed the Board that the Amphitheatre TDC existing grant extension and Grant
Request for the Restrooms/Concessions structure is going to the Board of County Commissioners on
August 27, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. Mr. Donn Weaver of the Veterans’ Memorial Center introduced Don
Pearsall, who is taking his place as President of the Brevard Veterans Council. He advised them they
would all attend the meeting to support the project. Member Ratterman shared that he visited Rep.
Tyler Sirois, and they spoke of the Amphitheatre project. Tim Lawry from the Facilities Dept. stated that
the quote received from Ivey Construction will be held for 60 days from mid-July 2024.

* A competitor purchased the Aviara Boat Company, and its 38-acre facility on the Barge Canal is
now available as an industrial site. This is an outstanding manufacturing facility with water access. The
owners are in the process of selecting a broker. MIRA has posted the availability on our website, and
Executive Director Larry notified NBEDZ and the EDC of the site/facility availability.

® With Commissioner Goodson’s support, a sign acknowledging the project partners will be put
up at the Sea Ray Drive Bridge project, and MIRA’s name will be included. MIRA and BOCC
deferred $275,000 per year of our tax increment for ten years to assist the project in 2020. At
that time, the estimated cost was approximately $5.5 Million. The project is currently under a
construction contract for roughly $10 Million, with completion in 2026, and will include
adequate capacity to support our future river walk / Sea Ray Drive pedestrian and bike trail to
Kelly Park.

e Under the Brownfield grant, Stantec is working on our Commercial Core brownfield
redevelopment plan, focusing on the SR 520 Commercial Core and Mall area. Member Morgan said she
heard “Drift Zone” signed a 20-year lease for an interior go-cart facility of some kind in the mall. A
Community Workshop date will be set and forthcoming for October. Larry will reach out to confirm a
suitable date.

e Matt Culver from NRMO said Stantec presented a bid on the renovations at Ms. Apple’s, but he
needs another quote before moving forward.

® The Sutton Pool property acquisition for the county remains in jeopardy until there is a meeting
of the minds with Florida Communities Trust (Florida Forever Act), the Granting Agency, and the
property owners, Brevard County Natural Resources, and the Zoo, and this may involve some
level of MIRA facilitation or a funding commitment. The Zoo has committed for quite some time
to making a significant investment in the Sutton property to accommodate the Restore our
Shores operation as the prime tenancy. A letter of intent to sell the property for $1 Million must
come from the owner to keep the sale viable. The Florida Communities Trust (FCT) will remove
the $1 million grant if an agreement is not reached. The FCT must receive, review and approve a
letter of intent to sell for $1 Million, which coincides with their appraised value.

® The Florida Communities Trust (FCT) is a state-funded land acquisition program created by Chapter 380,
Florida Statutes. The grant programs administered by FCT were initially funded through bonds issued
under Preservation 2000 and currently through the Florida Forever Act. FCT assists communities with4

20f4



protecting natural resources, providing recreational opportunities and preserving Florida’s traditional
working waterfronts through the competitive criteria outlined in the Parks and Open Space and the Stan
Mayfield Working Waterfronts Florida Forever Grant Programs. FCT is governed by a five-member board
with the Secretary of DEP or their designee serving as the chair.

e Director Lallo reminded the Board that there is no meeting in November because of the holiday.
He inquired if the MIRA meeting on October 24 could be moved to Thursday, October 31, because the
Florida Redevelopment Association Conference conflicts with our meeting date.

Board Member Barber moved the October 24th meeting to October 31. Member Wall seconded the
motion, which was unanimously approved.

e Director Lallo was asked about the status of the vacant community redevelopment manager
position. Director Lallo said the Agency received 24 applications, and four had been selected for 2nd
interviews. Of the four top candidates. A candidate has been selected from among the top two
candidates. There remain negotiations and a process that needs to be followed. The HR Success
Factors process, policies, and negotiations are underway with the selected candidate.

[ll. Development Presentation
B. River Fly-In Condominiums- Zoning: The agent pulled the item.
C. Palmetto & LeJeune (at 245 LeJeune Dr.) Zoning Change Request BU-1-11 to RU-2-8:

Board Member Smink moved to table the request for more information, which was seconded by
Member Morgan. The motion was unanimously approved.

A. Villas at River Palms; tax account 2438912-238918; 265 S. Banana River Dr. (South of SR 520).
Zoning Change Request BU-2 to RU 1-7:

Board Member Barber moved to table the request for more information and application to possibly
include a BDP (Binding Development Plan). Member Smink seconded the motion, which was
unanimously approved.

IV. New Business: None

V. Ongoing/Old Business:

A. Transit Stop Improvements (Seating) discussion on the style of seats that will differ from the
original eight transit stope. Member Wall asks who collects the advertising rent from the 20/20 bus
stops. Member Barber pointed out the list of proposed future bus stops. Director Lallo will inquire to
SCAT.

Member Wall motioned to approve new bus stop seats and related equipment, up to $20,000,

without Big Belly Trash Cans and work with SCAT to complete the action. It was seconded by Member
Barber and unanimously approved.

3of4



Chairman Herman made a motion for Member Barber and Director Lallo to meet with SCAT to
determine the location of the proposed bus stops and return to the Board for confirmation. Seconded
by Member Ratterman. Passed 5 to 1 (Member Morgan Nay).

Board Reports and Presentations:

Marcus Herman—The BoCC meeting for the Amphitheatre is on Tuesday, the 27th. Board members
may attend. However, it is best not to sit together in the interests of appearance with the Sunshine Law.

Cynthia Wall — CAMI is holding a Game Night Fundraiser for Merritt Island’s 2" Annual Holiday
Illumination Celebration on Sept. 20™ at 6:30 p.m. There will be a “The Not so Newlywed Game” with 4
local couples. Member Wall asked after S. Courtenay Project. Director Lallo said they were working
through some utility requirements.

Andy Barber —no report.

Corey Mecagni— no report.

Nicole Morgan — no report.

Jack Smink — no report.

Jack Ratterman — Talked to Representative Tyler. Sirois about some other issues. Part of North
Merritt Island is situated within the Northern Brevard Economic Development Zone (NBEDZ), and it’s
unclear how they want to use it; Mr. Sirois said he would check into it. The CFX wants to work the toll
road this way, and Merritt Islanders should be concerned about tolls being instituted on all the
causeways. He advised that there is a possibility that wetland permits are being held up until authorities
decide who is going to issue them.

Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney — no report.

Director Lallo — no further report.

Board Member Ratterman moved to adjourn the meeting. Member Morgan seconded it. The motion
was unanimously approved.

The next meeting is on October 31, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.

4 0f4



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting

September 26, 2024
ITEM II. A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Projects and Programs Updates and Status Report
PROJECT: Minutes of August 22, 2024
Requested Action: Presentation and Discussion

Summary Explanation & Background:

Verbal report from the Executive Director focusing on the status and updates of current and planned
public and private projects and programs, issues, and situations in the Merritt Island Redevelopment

Area.

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: None




-

MERRITT ISLAND
S eRTITVELTMENT 3T

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting

September 26, 2024
ITEM III. A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Development Presentations.
PROJECT: Palmetto & LeJeune Parcel (24Z200040)
Requested Action: Consideration for Recommendation

Summary Explanation & Background:

Planning and Zoning Application Number 24200040

Owner & Applicant: Manuel E. Baten | 245 Leleune Drive | Merritt Island, Florida
Parcel ID: 24 36 35 01 A 1| Tax Account #2426699

Notifications sent to Property owners within 500 feet.

® This Parcel is located at the SW corner of Palmetto Ave. & Leleune Drive.

= Site Size: 0.32 acres

* Asingle-family detached home with a detached garage is currently on the site.

* The applicant is requesting to rezone the parcel from RU-1-11 to RU-2-8.

® This will enable the applicant to have two detached residential units on the site.

®* Abutting Property Zoning: N|BU-1 (across Street) S|RU1-11 Palmetto Road W|RU2-15

" Concerns: The building may not meet setback requirements and may still need a variance to build
* Character of Area: Mixed-use area, commercial, multi-family, and single-family use.

® The RU-1-11 single-family residential zoning classifications encompass lands devoted to single-
family residential development of spacious character, together with such accessory uses as may be
necessary or are normally compatible with residential surroundings.

® The RU-2-8 low-density multiple-family residential zoning classifications encompass lands devoted
to low-density multifamily residential purposes, together with such accessory uses as may be
necessary or are normally compatible with residential surroundings.

® Maximum density is as follows: RU-2-8: Eight units per gross acre.

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Documents




epiioj4 Ul UOJeIO] 10/PUE 'BRIE '80URISIP "UOHEAB]E 'SolEepUNOQ Aliedoid JuBAs|a- AR Be) sulialep URD JOABMAINS Pasuaslj-e P04
Jou Aew siafe) dew 'Sujddew jensepes pue (S19) SwaisAs ueyewsop; adesboeg jo ainjew i) 0] 81Q  SUOHIPUOD PLOM-RE. 108} 84 AJLIESSEI0U JOU Op PUE AJUO
suf jeBa) sayjo Aue o “sjerd 'sAanins Juaseidss jou op pue Ao sesodind SANeASNjjl pUR JUSWSSSSSe J0) pauleluie w ale suoneddde dew so/pue sdew Ov40G ity

e Ajuo "seuepunoq (ebs; so/pue ‘adeys ‘uoneao) ssioasd Jussaidal jou Aew pue ubye Ajpspoaid
$950d.4nd BARRSNY|i PUE JUSUISSASSE 0] 818 S{00] UOJEIO| PUB JUSUISINS BALY ‘SSIMaYIT TUSLINY




T WNd S$P-LV L vCOC/SLIL
SiDuY 104 epEngddy Goas

(=]
Ll
$s8lppy Buuoz |
wy £4°0 §900  S2€0°0 0 - —
e uogoss ¢+ sjuswaseg Buiuoz Aunon | SPILUSAG
w800 $00 Z00 0 [
00v'2:L [aqen Jesdis suolioy Bufuoz M - Aempeoy - SHIOM 2l|gnd suonoy Buiuoz :s)nsay yosieasg
7 i =% SCL-Z-NE
- 8L E LR I £
| v NG z-Ng BN\
el _ 9kl

e . no

669921 1UN0ddY




((EGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOF 1, BLOCK &, R

WPLAT BOON 11, PAGE VB, OF THE PuBLIC 0 COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND ALSO THAT
PAST ©F LOT 2, BLOSK A MEPLAT OF MERRITT LAKES CSTATES. DESCRMSED AS FOLLOWS:

=D L0T I, Ju0CK A, STERLY TO THE WORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 2. BLOCK
:LIE;‘IEFE' RN THE WESTERLY UNE OF SAID LOT 2, BLOCK A, 10 A PoinT,

34D LOT 2, BLOCK A, 10 THE EASTERLY LINE OF S40 LOT 2. BLOCH A, THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY
A',OHG!NI(AS‘!RL‘!.NEW!AMWT!.MA24?1{1““‘5'%"0"’!1‘%“
SURVEY MOTES

:‘-c‘-"E VITIERED FUARORT OF TS Suliviy (8 FOR SCUnUtr neftIUANON AN WERCVILINL QIAY. S S0,

4 TME UNDERSICNED TAMVEYOR WAS MOT BEEN PROVOLD A CURRENT THLE GhWACN OR ASSTHACT OF UAFTEYS
MTECING MILE O3 BOU THE SUBECT PHOPERLY. 1T (5 POSSIOLL THAT THERE ARE oF
;ﬁ?&[‘ wﬂ({éﬂﬁn CEEDY. CASEVENTE OR OTWER ovfTRUMENTS THAT COUD AFFECT THE SOUNDRRIES 10 Thi
3 TS SURVEY 3033 NGT LPLECT O DETERWNE OWRIREHS

A CHISCSURVEY MEETS OF CACEEDS THT uiGeu, SORZONTA, CONTRDL ASCUISY 3 0 1A00 TOM A Silukiiss

vy, g
5 UEASUREUENTS Smuiy WERCON ARE EXPRESSED 1 FEEY AND DIOUAL WANTS THEREQT

i TGl ARE AT THE EXROSED ARERS OF WPROVIMENTS, UNOERGROUND FOOTERS. FONDATIONS,
UTLIMES, STATC MNML DM FIFLOS ON OTHER SUBSURTASE STRUCTURES ART NOT LOCATIO TOR THE BURPOST
O WS BURVEY. SHY Sle SN WAWE NOT BLDM EXCHATEO. M)
A1 APPROTUATE OCATIONS
T IMPROVESINTS thdnt MIZECH GARNGT 0T USED 10 RLCONSIBUCT PAOPTATY BOUNDERITE
g‘ﬁrms WAT WEFEAESNCED “0 Mo wiST Rl OF wev UNl OF (E3EUNT DT, &5 BInG 5 38aY

3 _ACaus FSER & COUTS, LLC QA CAGE INDUSTRIES, RESERVES THE RIGHT TO UTHAZE Aar ANS ALL
?w:n:m_'nt GITANED 1N THE P Tl OF THIS SURVEY NCLUDING THIS MAP OF LARG BANNEY. FOR ANY
Yredil

19 THiS SURVEY MaY NOT 3E RLERUOUCED IN WHOLE OR N PART WITHOUT THE PERWISSION OF ADAVS. KISER &
COUTS, LLC B/B/A GAGE INOUSTRES

‘1 THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID UNLESS BEARING AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND LAND SURVEYQR'S SEAL,

13, SUBLECT FESGERCE LES wilveN FLOOD 70N X A8 PER FiRd MiP NULBER | 1003COSTTH OATED
/1973021, TME LOCATION (5 BISED UPON WAPS PREPAALD OY THE FEDIRAL EMEAGEMEY WASASEWEIE AGENCY.
iy LOCATION AMD FLODD CETERMSATION BEST SA0 SSENCY THIS SURVETOR ASSUMES MO RESAOMSEBLTY FOR
LG LATANI M) DETERRLTON *

MAP OF SURVEY \

GRAPHIC SCALE

EPAT OF HERRITT LAKSS ESTATES, ACEONM 10 IHE BLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED

g.ew AT THE HORTHEASTERLY CORMER OF SAID 00T 2, BLOCK A, THENCE Run NOATHERLY LNE G4

o THE oh " L =
SOUTHEASTEALY 24 FEET
FUN NORTHEASTERLY AND PARALLEL TO AND 24 FEET DISTANCE FROM THE NORTHERLY LINE oF

{ M FEET )
Linch = 30 1
LEGEND:

-7 oy Fed & ©
o Rlatyy
@ Fond 570" wer kaa & Cap
A0 {Unmas othireize shown)
T Pyugs Prile
@ el
PUDE Pole Uity s Monoge Tzamwnant
Ovhitzs Concrete

LM o Faretling

POINT OF
BEGINNING

NE_CORNEP OF
LOT 2, BLOLY 4

7B/PC  SEE FILE

Project § 21-387 (32rs8e.0913 sesrmapegtgeast s

WWW.LANDSURVEYBREVARD.COM ; o Shaory

Erown by SEC 9 IS @ I BOUNDARY SURVEY
Scaie 1" = 30 Corliliad loclihu BTN ok
9/50/202 HE S ot T AL Chan
0 22t Gy ol 1t
Hiatytue.
REVISIONS. %
S

11



.

uonelodio) . Abojouydal  MaIp3ibes V.

M@ R RS 3 ¥Z0Z/0T/TC




Dana Blickley, CFA, Brevard County Property Appraiser (321) 264-6700

2} Titusville * Viera - Melbourne - Palm Bay www.BCPAO.us
rﬁ . Disclaimer
q REAL PROPERTY DETAILS
(S Account 2426699 - Roll Year 2024

Owners BUTEN, MANUEL

Mailing Address 245 LE JEUNE DR MERRITT ISLAND FL 32953
Site Address 245 LEJEUNE DR MERRITT ISLAND FL 32953
Parcel ID 24-36-35-01-A-1

Taxing District 2200 - UNINCORP DISTRICT 2

HEX1 - HOMESTEAD FIRST
HEX2 - HOMESTEAD ADDITIONAL

Property Use 0110 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

Exemptions

Total Acres 0.32

Site Code 0001 - NO OTHER CODE APPL.

Plat Book/Page  0011/0016

Subdivision MERRITT LAKES ESTS, REPLAT OF

. MERRITT LAKES ESTS, REPLAT OF LOT 1 & N 24 FT OF
Land Description LOT 2 BLK A
VALUE SUMMARY
Category 2024 2023 2022
Market Value $205,560 $204,890 $200,200
Agricultural Land Value $0 $0 $0
Assessed Value Non-School $205,560 $204,890 $200,200
Assessed Value School $205,560 $204,890 $200,200
Homestead Exemption $25,000 $25,000 30
Additional Homestead $25,000 $25,000 $0
Other Exemptions $0 $0 $0
Taxable Value Non-School $155,560 $154,890 $200,200
Taxable Value School $180,560 $179,890 $200,200
SALES / TRANSFERS
Date Price Type Instrument
10/07/2021 $280.000 WD 9286/0104
03/23/2020 $53.300 WD 8700/0784
08/25/2009 $135.000 WD 6016/1373
09/09/2008 $90.000 WD 5890/1210
09/09/2008 QcC 5890/1209
08/13/2008 - WD 5904/7868
07/01/2008 CT 5873/9780
08/17/2006 WD 5691/4059
05/17/2005 . WD 5468/4606
10/27/2004 - WD 5382/4869
10/31/2002 $135,900 AG 4753/3038
05/07/2002 $31,000 PR 4593/3481
05/07/2002 - PR 4593/3482
06/01/1995 $7,500 QcC 3486/3048
12/01/1987 — WD 287011402
01/02/1972 $15,900 - 1216/0772
BUILDINGS
PROPERTY DATA CARD #1
Building Use: 0110 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE
Materials Details
Exterior Wall: STUCCQO  Year Built 1857
Frame: MASNRYCONC  Story Height 8
Roof: ASPH/ASB SHNGL  Floors 1
Roof Structure: HIP/GABLE Residential Units 1
Commercial Units 0
Sub-Areas Extra Featuras

Base Area (1st) 1,512  Garage Detached 644
Open Parch 200

Total Base Area 1,512

Total Sub Area 1712

16

13



SKETCH/AREA TABLE ADDENDUM

RE#: 2426699

DRAWN BY: CPE

: CR 1/6/22 CPE

DATE: 01/06/2022

SUBJECT INFO

SKETCH
23'
ES GRGDA
644SF
56'
N BO1
1512SF
. OPF
0 200SF 40'
AREA CALCULATIONS SUMMARY COMMENT TABLE 1
Code Description Factor Net Size Perimeter Net Totals
BO1 B1 il 1512 166 1512
GRGDA GRGDA 1 644 102 644
OPF OP-30 1 200 90 200

COMMENT TABLE 2

COMMENT TABLE 3

© ILOOKABOUT (US) Inc. dba Apex Software

Page 1



Firefox https://library. municode.com/fl/brevard_county/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=CO.

Ta]
—

Sec. 62-1371. - Low-density multiple-family residential, RU-2-4, RU-2-6 and RU-2-8.

The RU-2-4, RU-2-6 and RU-2-8 low-density multiple-family residential zoning classifications encompass lands devoted to low-
density multifamily residential purposes, together with such accessory uses as may be necessary or are normally compatible

with residential surroundings.

(1) Permitted uses.
a. Permitted uses are as follows:

Multifamily residential dwellings.
Duplexes.

Single-family attached dwellings, in accordance with the development standards in the single-family attached

residential zoning classifications.

Single family dwellings up to the allowable density limitation of the zoning classification. For the purposes of
setback and spacing requirements, such single family dwellings shall be considered principal buildings.

Additional multiple-family dwellings are permitted on the parcel if all units comply with the density limits.
Parks and public recreational facilities.

Private golf courses,

Foster homes.

Resort dwellings.

Sewer lift stations.

1of5 9/18/2024, 4:32 PM



Firefox https://library.municode.com/fl/brevard county/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=CO

O

Permitted uses with conditions are as follows (see division 5, subdivision II, of this article): o

Preexisting use.
Private parks and playgrounds.
Temporary living quarters during construction of a residence.

(2) Accessory buildings or uses. Accessory buildings and uses customary to residential uses are permitted. (Refer to

definition cited in section 62-1102 and standards cited in section 62-2100.5).

(3) Conditional uses. Conditional uses are as follows:

Boardinghouses and bed and breakfast inns.

Change of nonconforming agricultural use.

Development rights receipt or transfer.

Guesthouses or servants' quarters, without kitchen facilities.

Land alteration (over five acres and up to ten acres).

Power substations, telephone exchanges and transmission facilities.
Recreational facilities.

Residential/recreational marina.

Skateboard ramps.

Substantial expansion of a preexisting use.

Wireless telecommunication facilities and broadcast towers.

2 0of5 9/18/2024, 4:32 PV



Firefox https://library. municode.com/fl/brevard_county/codes/ code_of ordinances?nodeld=CO.
~
(4) Lot requirements. -

a. Minimum lot size is 7,500 square feet.
b. Minimum lot width is 75 feet.
€. Minimum lot depth is 75 feet.
d. Maximum density is as follows:
1. RU-2-4:Four units per gross acre.
2. RU-2-6:Six units per gross acre.

3. RU-2-8:Eight units per gross acre.

For the purpose of computing allowable density, property divided by a public road shall be considered

separate parcels.

e. Maximum lot coverage is 40 percent.
(5) Setbacks and spacing requirements.

a. Accessory buildings. Accessory buildings shall be located to the rear of the front building line of the principal
building or structure closest to the front property line and shall be set back not less than seven and one-half
feet from the side and rear lot lines for developed single family sites and not less than ten feet from the side
and rear lot lines for developed multiple family sites, but in no case within the setback from a side street.
There shall be a minimum spacing of five feet between any other structure on the same site.

b. Breezeway/visual corridor. All riverfront and oceanfront properties are subject to breezeway/visual corridor

regulations enumerated in section 62-2105.

C. Principal structures.
1. The front setback shall be 25 feet.

2. The rear setback shall be 20 feet.
3.

3of5 9/18/2024, 4:32 PM



Firefox https://library. municode.com/fl/brevard_county/codes/code_of ordinances?nodeld=CO..

©
The side setback shall be not less than seven and one-half Qmmﬁ:o_‘m__m_:m_mﬂmﬁ::v\-.mm_.amznmmm:aﬁmjﬁmm:o_\m__o\%mw l

structures. On corner lots, side setbacks shall be at least 15 feet from side lot line. If a corner lot is contiguous to a key lot,
setbacks shall be not less than 25 feet.

d. Spacing between principal structures. Principal buildings or structures shall be spaced a minimum of 15 feet
from other principal buildings or structures on the same site. Such spacing shall not be covered or connected
to the principal structures.

(6) Usable common open space requirements. If the lot, plot, tract or parcel is two acres or more in size, or,
regardless of the size, if the property has or will have more than 15 total dwelling units, then 35 percent of the

total fand area shall be utilized as usable common space as defined in section 62-1102. At the time of site plan

submission, the method of perpetual maintenance of common facilities shall be provided as required in section

62-1445(a). Ten percent of this area shall be retained in natural vegetation rather than improved.

(7) Minimum floor area. Minimum floor area is as follows:
a. Single-family dwelling unit: 1,100 square feet.

b. Duplexes: 1,150 square feet and 575 square feet per unit.

€. Apartments:

1. One bedroom: 500 square feet.

2. Two bedrooms: 750 square feet plus 100 square feet for each additional bedroom.

3. Efficiencies: 400 square feet.

(8) Structural height standards.

a. Where the property abuts any other land located in the GU, AGR, AU, ARR, REU, RU-1-7, RU-1-9, RU-1-11,
RU-1-13, RR-1, EU, EU-1, EU-2, SEU, SR, RVP, TR-1-A, TR-1, TR-2, TR-3, TRC-1, RRMH-1, RRMH-2.5, RRMH-5, EA,

PA or GML zoning classifications, the maximum height threshold of any structure or building thereon shall be
35 feet.

b. Where the property abuts any other land located in the RA-2-4, RA-2-6, RA-2-8, RA-2-1 0, RU-2-4, RU-2-6,

RU-2-8, RU-2-10, RU-2-12, RU-2-15, RU-2-30, RP, BU-1-A, BU-1, BU-2, IU, IU-1, TU-1, TU-2, PIP or PBP zoning

4 of 5 9/18/2024, 4:32 PM



Firefox https://library. municode.com/fl/brevard_county/codes/code_of ordinances?nodeld=CO.

o
classifications, the maximum height threshold of any structure or building thereon shall be 45 feet. —

C. Where any structure or building exceeds 35 feet in height, all conditions enumerated in section 62-2101.5 as

applicable shall be fully satisfied.

d. Structures or buildings may not exceed the maximum height thresholds stated in this subsection unless
otherwise permitted by section 62-2101.5.

(9) Ownership. A multi-family residential development site shall be subject to single ownership or condominium

ownership...

50f5 9/18/2024, 4:32 PM



.

MERRITT ISLAND
—ALIIVE.QPVINT AGTUCY o

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting
September 26, 2024

ITEM IIlL. B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Development Presentations
PROJECT: Villas at River Palms; S. Banana River Dr., 265 South of SR 520
Requested Action: Consideration of Recommendation to rezone from BU-2 to RU-1-7 to create

an 11 single-family home subdivision.

Summary Explanation & Background:

Location: 120 S. Banana River Drive, Merritt Island, Florida, situated on S. Banana River Drive, adjacent to the
Banana River Lagoon, approximately 265 ft. south of E. Merritt Island Causeway

Application Number: (23200067)

Tax Account Numbers: 2438912, 2438913, 2438914, 2438915, 2438917 & 2438918.

Zoning Request: Rezoning Request BU-2 to RU1-7

Purpose: To allow for creating a subdivision comprised of 11 Single Family Luxury Waterfront Homes on
approximately 2.7 acres on the above assembled Tax Account parcels.

Owner: Teresa | Schenk dba Villas at River Palms, LLC
Applicant Agent: Edward M. Fleis, P.E.: Fleis Engineering & Consulting, LLC.

Character of Area per Planning & Development: Waterfront property between RU-2-15 zoning and a
nonconforming mobile home park; commercial BU-2 zoning lies upon the west side of S. Banana River
Drive.

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached:  Supporting Application Documents




= ’
P
Brevard \.

Public Locati
Schools 3 i A
\,) /] J b ..:_. frarepts
e Pl i 9 4
...... 13
Y AUDUBON
g] i
v s —{'
W ? 3
£ :‘T
Vs, € nea
-:‘:MDI‘ L
TR S
bl
§ P %
: :
A —— :
Py Vi
(Aoull«v-
iz
430
3
i '
i'x - b 2
iy
. *
i
w, e
. Y, 3 s
; ool # P
Sykes Creek g
E(. b 1.
J -
3
Schools Affected by Development; '
Tropical Elementary School e
Jefferson Middle School
Merritt Island Senior High School

4

Drawn By l

Planning & Projact Management
Blake Stinson e
August 14, 2023

~_1Villas at River Palms
i on Map

L

Banana
River

Villas at Iii\)ér Palms
CD-2023-19
11 Single-Family Units

AngetThy

3

1
i
)
M

0 013025 0.5

Lo UL Boatrmn NCAEMHLE ttenoa HOA USG5

0.75 Miles

" .r-—‘**ﬁ \

21



...”.‘.m ﬁﬂv..../.._\ f

(N

...w m M.
s

S ﬁ@_

B

22



| vwad

SV Jo} BpIng ddy Ga

oo

uonosg

WY Z5:G1:0} 'p20Z/S/L &2

_ﬁ ﬁ,./
I8QET 193115 Buuoz ﬂ ™
sjuswesey Buuoy - AUNOD oo | 8pILAAD O ///L

suofoy Buiuoz D Aempeoy - SHIOM 21IQNd (Junoaoy xe) |99 ed :S3INsay Yyosleag

NGRSy

. w._ k= »_ch

—
zns
st

&ng

] ] ] e /

8168EYC B L1B8EYT ‘SLBYEYZ ‘VIL6BEYE ‘CL68EHT 'TLB8EYT 1S# JUnody



REVIEWED R

By George Ritchie at 9:24 am, Jul 05, 2024

Planning and Development
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way

iding A, R 114
revard
321-633-2070

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Application for Zoning Action, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, or
Variance

Applications must be submitted in person. Please call 321-633-2070 for an appointment at
least 24 hours in advance. Mailed, emailed, or couriered applications will not be accepted.

23200067

Existing FLU: _?Ommumty Commerc Existing Zoning: __BU—2

Proposed FLU: Proposed Zoning: A 7 N

PROPERTY OQWNER INFORMATION

MNeethaddibisrrtowmmerstehentified* =

if the owner is an LLC, include a copy of the operating agreement.

Teresa | Schenk VILLAS AT RIVER PALMS, LLC
N—e;ﬁié(s) Company i )

8255 Cascade St, Ste 120 Commerce Twp MI 48382
Street " City o State  Zip Code
teresa@drsmhc.com 248-363-61" 248-705-54!

Email - Phone Cell

APPLICANT INFORMATION IF DIFFERENT FROM OWNER:

D Attorney IZ( Agent E’ Contract Purchaser D Other

LpDwanp M fFrers, e Feees Ezmmgf,ezuc éa(«@ut;(md e,
Name(s) a ~ Company
/274 &, /Mwac. quut Srek; 57.0 rece ﬁCAaJ _FL 229377
Street ; City State Zip Code
Edfles @ Gmsl.Corh 22( zee 1889
Email " Phone Cell

0,




APPLICATION NAME
D Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CP) (greater than 50 acres)
D Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CP) (less than 50 acres)

D Text Amendment (CP) Element _ . o

D Other Amendment (CP): Name e . —coe—

[v| Rezoning Without cup (RWOC)

| Combination Rezoning ang cup (CORC)

[_] Conditional Use Permit (cUP)

D Binding Development Plan (BDP)

[ ] Binding Development Plan (BDP) (Amendment)
D Binding Development Pian (BDP) (Removal)

D Variance(s) (V) (building permits will not be approved until 30 days after the date the
order is signed)

[_—] Administrative Approval of Setbacks, Lot Size, or Accessory Structures
D Administrative Approval of F lag Lot or Easement

Administrative Approval of On-Premises Consumption of Alcohalic Beverages for
Restaurants / Snack Bars

D Other Action: Name _

Acreage of Request; _2 _Z _A_cres

Reason for Request.

! To enable the development of a high-quality riverfront single family

i detached subdivision. The undeveloped 5 Io't parFe! contiguous to the
north is zoned RU-2-15, Multiple Family Residential. The property

| contiguous to the south is zoned RU-1-9 and has been developed as the
* River Palms Mobile Home Park.

| ffpr?" E e

e —— e B i, —

25



=
REVISED

12:46 pm, Jul 05, 2024

The undersigned understands this application must be complete and accurate prior to
advertising a public hearing:

D I am the owner of the subject property, or if corporation, | am the officer of the
corporation authorized to act on this request.

"I am the iegal representative of the owner of the subject property of this application.
(Notarized Authorization to Act must be submitted with application)

@/An approval of this application does not entitle the owner to a development permit.

For Variarices, | understand that building permits will not be approved until 30 days after
the date the order is signed, in order to comply with the appeal procedure.

LT'/-]/I certify thaj the information in this application and all sketches and data attached to and
ma{gje‘ part hereof are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

/ e
TR ple S s S.4 2023

Signatiffe of Property Ownér or Date
Authorized Representative

State of _ F ZQLL—_C!CL.,__ = s
County of _;Bm&zard

Subscribed and sworn before me, by~ physical presence or online notarization,
this {ﬁ M day of, /4(,(0 L(de , 2043, personally appeared

J
_E.d ) /Lt'/l’ F/r" IS _.who is personally known to me or produced

___as identification, and who did / did not take an oath.

Aler QJ—-R.QK A

Notz ry’Public Signature (J Seal

PR
PRS- N -

Nolary Publio Stale of Florida
q a Karen L. Doughton

m My Commlssion HH 288352 P
i Expiras 7/14/2026 )

- ==

26




Iv NN = - ———— ___}

Office Use Only:

23700067 _ ‘
| Accela No, . Fee: $\\1u.00  pats Filed: g[é«[as District No. _
Tax Accaunt No. (list all that apply) 2428912 , 2438913, 243891y 3G, Au3§917
al3garq i

Parcel 1.D. NO..94_31_5|_°|_¥-qo) Q4 -37-31-01- % -u3 M-37-31-01-% -4y,
M-37-Bl-01-¥-ny, 24-3T-Bl-0l -%_yq 3 g4.39.3,. Ol-*-U4q0l\ |

! T__W_;;_- a m " Sec Sub Block  Lot/Parcel |
Planner: mMe\as Wy Sign Issued ta; ClE Notification Radius: _So00 4. |
| MEETINGS DATE TIME |
F&Z e - J
PSJ Baard . . |
; NMI Board . |
LPA P S !
BoA i i |
' BCC o -
Wetland survey required by Natural Resources Yes @ Initials _sawl
| Is the subject property located in a JPA,@ or 500 feet of the Palm Bay Extension?
No If yes, list —

Location of subject property: Poccels ace \ocaked vdroien S Banana Kiver Do, [
Q“a B 6““"‘"’“ R{vu’ L"‘fon f af?(ox. 905‘-@’\' Soud\ o'? E. MereinYy

f
'! leland Cswlb J

| Description of Request: Rezome Framm BU-2 do RU-1-7 do ceente a su\aé\‘\.:_.i.‘e,n.

| |

Z

27



Page 2 of 2

ACCELA #
DOCUMENT SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
B i o o— -
| |
B " " 8| g
Elg| ¢ 5 A E:
5| o o . E “c 3| = =
N5 2 - AT EIAEL -
AR 3 o @ E|E|2|8|2|&
2l 8 8|%| % Bl glelL|glp %8
S|E|Elc| 5|22\ c|2l58|%|<|E|2
5| = sl 8| v <| ¢ gl' A ¥ 5| L p|N|T|E
Slclgl&[3|&l&fojz|S|=|8|8|a|uls
Sls|ele|e|slSisls]|=zlS|wl8l28|2
AEARIRIEAR-INE o| T[] & sl @l 8l2|3a
a| 5| 8| @»l5lel|5s§ S| 2|35/ 28|58 @ E’ 5| | &
Application type 4| < || 33| & ul 3| 2|09V |z|z|8 8L 2
e T NUMBER OF COPIES REQUIRED -
Sefftochevkindicangrecelpt [ | | [ T/T T [ T/ | | pa |
Comprehensive PlanA_mendmentG 1141 (1 N2 /82/ 1A A1/, _'i_[—/_ Y
Zoning request EAEY >‘ W |l M/ X1 1 |x * W
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 1[4 |1 (1 [7F]1 siFR L Y
AA-Waiver | EWE 0 I I | 11| | v
AA - Easement or Flag lot ({1 |1 |1 J1 |1 |1 i - _i |
— B | et { L] [ I
Variance B 1 |1 Jl 111 | N . 1 | |y
| - = 1 l - _I 1

Yf the property is not owned in entirety by the applicant, either an Authorization to Act form or a natarized letter from
each/all property owners of the subject property is required.

’Legal Description must be typed on a separate sheet, if not easily described on the deed.

*School Board Concurrency application is required if the re
unit.

quest represents an increase of more than one residential

‘Wetland Survey required on Commercial or Industrial property.
°CUP applications require a completed worksheet and a sketch plan with the application signed by a planner.

®Must include Comprehensive Plan Amendment supplemental form reviewed by a planner prior to submitting formal
application. The supplement must include a written statement explaining the rational and the appropriate data and
analysis necessary to support the proposed change.

’Administrative waivers requiring a signed affidavit from all abutting property owners indicating no objection to the
requested waiver of lot size, width or depth requirement. The affidavit must state the specific request.

¥ Survey must be submitted if requested by staff,

*Variance Hardship Worksheet must be filled out completely, addressing the six criteria for a hardship.

*Additional information may be requested by staff dependent upon the requested action. These include but are not
limited to impact analysis studies:

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA): TIA must be submitted if required by the County Traffic Engineer. Analysis methodology must be
coordinated with the Traffic Engineering Office.

Environmental Impact Analysis: The analysis must be conducted by a qualified environmental professianal and dated less than one
year old. The analysis must document the types of habitat found on site; identify vegetation types, soils types, wetlands, floodplain;
and any other environmental concerns,

Water and Sewer Demand: Identify the potable water and sanitary sewer demand for the amendment based on the current and
rroposed future land use designations using the per capita water and wastewater standards of the applicable service provider.

N



CALCULATION OF PUBLIC HEARING APPLICATION FEES -ZONING OFFICE

PUBLIC HEARING APPLICATION FEES

REZONING

Environmental Area

Residential Professional

General Use and Agricultural Use
Single-Family Residential
Single-Family Mobile Home
Commercial/Planned Commercial
Tourist Commercial
Industrial/Planned Industrial
Planned Unit Development
Singte-Family Attached Residential
Multiple-Family Residential
Recreational Vehicle Park

Mobile Home Park/Mobile Home Co-op

CUP’S OR ROU APPLICATIONS
Fee per request (with rezoning)
Fee per request (without rezoning)

OTHER APPLICATION FEES

Consultant fee Retainer per Towar Application

Transfer of Development Rights

Comprehensive Plan Appeals (Vested Rights)
One (5.0 acres or less) Single-family residential
All other Appeals

Variance/Appeals of Administrative Interpretation
Base Fee
Fee for each additional request

Special Hearing Fee for P & Z / LPA

Special Hearing Fee for BOA

All Other Unlisted Zoning Applications

Miscellaneous

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS
Small Scale Amendment

Large Scale Amendment

Maximum Fee on a Single Application

FEES COLLECTED FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS
Office of Natural Resources zoning review (if applicable)
flag lot &/or easement review
Land Development PUD review
flag lot 8/or easement review
Address Assignment review of flag lot &/or easement
Zoning fee

BASE FEE ADJUSTMENTS

* If area for these requests have the potential for only
one more lot, the fee is

** Maximum acreage fees for these requests shall be

*** Maximum Planned Unit Development Fee shall be

**** Maximum fee for all other zoning requests shall be

BASE FEE

511.00
960.00
849.00"
849.00*
849.00"
1,184.00
1,855.00
1,855.00
5,661.00
960.00
960.00
1,408.00
1,408.00

447.00
849.00

6,834.00
1,520.00

433.00
1,733.00

598.00
182.00
3,692.00
1,872.00
849.00

919.00
1,785.00
17,334.00

300.00
360.00
100.00
150.00
100.00
277.00

288.00
2,240.00
13,432.00
8,955.00

Rev. 1-19-2017

ACREAGE FEE UNIT FEE SUB-TOTAL
( -5) x 24**
(2.7 5)x 24+ 84900
(  -5)x24m
( )x 24
{ yx 45
( )x 45
( }x 45

{ )x 24

( )x 24

{ )x 24 -

( )x 24

$43 per acre
SUB-TOTAL **/m~

1,149.00

TOTAL

l

29



l ® - Planning & Development
'/ Central Cashier

/ ‘ reva rd 2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way
¢ Building A, Room 114
Planning & Melbourne, FL 32940

Development

RECEIPT OF PAYMENT

Payment Date: 8/29/2023
Receipt #: 717356
Transaction Id# 141759525

Payment Method Payment Reference # Amount Paid Comments
e-Check 141759525 $1,174.00
$1,174.00 Total

120 S BANANA RIVER DR, MERRITT ISLAND, FL 32952

Rezoning $1,174.00
23200067

Fee Invoice # Amount
Application Processing Fee 873784 $25.00
Rezaning Natural Resources Review 873786 $300.00
Rezoning Single Family Residential 873786 $849 00

Grand Total $1,174.00

Reprint Date: 07/05/24

www.brevardcounty.us/PlanningDev
P (321) 633-2068 F (321) 633-2052

1 Receipt_AA 2016_SSRS

Additional Fees may apply to obtain a Certificate of Completion, a Certificate of Occupancy, Pre-Power, or Final Inspection. .
To verify fees please visit the Brevard County Planning & Development Search. ( 3
)

30



Zoning Information Worksheet
Villas at River Palms, LLC

(Does this match the warranty deed?)

Owner(s):

Ed Fleis
Applicant(s})

(Does this person have authorization from everyone listed on the warranty deed?)
24-37-31-01-40, 43, 44, 46, 49 and 49.01

(If more than one parcel, they must share a property line to be on the same application.)
BU-2

Parcel ID#:

Present Zoning:

N
Is there a BDP or a CUP on the property? Yes/No: e (If yes, attach BDP)
Existing BDP states:

Requested Zoning/Cup; =2 10 RU-1-7

BDP Requested? Yes/No: ''©

If CUP Request, do you have a CUP worksheet filled out by the applicant? Yes/No

F'revuously Approved Zonmg Actaons on lot:

68 511962) (/ L1 to BU-2 2/04/1960)

N
Is this a non-conforming lot of record? Yes/No:) Why?
Non-Conforming to

Is this a substandard lot? Yes/No)Why?

CC
What is the FLU Designation of the property?.

e Is the requested zoning consistent with the FLU’{Yes No (See compatibility table)

* [f no, what is the requested small scale plan amendment? (Must be 10 acres or less)

Character of the Area — List the recent zoning changes in same section? (Last 3 years)

Action #, Date of action and State what changed?
74 N/A

f'“"“"\
w lC/\'\:; B

1



If this is a CUP request, list all CUP’s on adjacent properties:

RU-2-15 RU-1-9 -
Abutting property zoning: N ¥ S ISl w PY7

JPA/Special Board/Special Section? Yes/No (Circle one and make a note on the application) PSJ, NM(‘\MIRD
ROCKLEDGE, MELBOURNE, PALM SHORES, TITUSVILLE, PALM BAY or within 500' of PALM BAY EXTENSio—N/

Reason for Rezoning Request wants to create single-family subdivision /44 /0 7S

» If proposing single-family or multi-family how many units? = '~
¢ If proposing a CUP for alcohol, how many seats? Bar or Restaurant?
o Do you have a certified survey indicating there are no churches or schools within 400'? Yes/No

o Do you have a site plan showing the layout and parking configuration? Yes/No
o Do you have a CUP worksheet filled out by the applicant? Yes/No
« Ifthe request is for commercial zoning, do you have a wetland survey that includes a legal description
of the wetland? Yes/No (If no, NR must have checked no on the front of the application)

Existing structures/uses on the property? mixture of vacant and 3 residential buildings

Describe the character of the area based upon Administration Policy 3 of FLUE (attached):
Waterfront pre pearty betwean RU-2-15 zoning and a nonconforming mobile home park commercial

¥g-| bewda ol 5 BHanana Bliver Duig

—BlJ? zoouna les ponn tha g

Concerns raised as part of request: Sl

Other options discussed with applicant: fLU to south is RES 6, density limit due to CHHA would limit to 6

PP
b LAGT CVLITG

Did you print out the Property Appraiser's Map for this property?
Did you mark the map?
Did you stamp the deed(s)?

George Ciohio Juut 05, 2024

Planner Signature Date 4)

32



$ N
N
School Board of Brevard County provard, \
2700 Judge Fran Jamieson Way » Vlera, FL. 32940-6699 Schools \\
Dr. Mark J. Rendell, Ed.D., Superintendent )

August 14, 2023

Mr. Paul Body, Planner Il

Land Development Section

Planning & Development Department

Brevard County Board of County Commissioners
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way

Viera, Florida 32940

RE: Proposed Villas Development
School Impact Analysis — Capacity Determination CD-2023-19

Dear Mr. Paul Body,

We received a completed School Facility Planning & Concurrency Application for the
referenced development. The subject property is Tax Account number 2438912 (Parcel ID
number: 24-37-31-01-*-40), Tax Account number 2438913 (Parcel ID number: 24-37-31-01-
*-43), Tax Account number 2438914 (Parcel (D number: 24-37-31-01-*-44), Tax Account
number 2438915 (Parcel ID number: 24-37-31-01-*-46), Tax Account number
2438917 (Parcel ID number: 24-37-31-01-*-49) and Tax Account number 2438918 (Parcel ID
number: 24-37-31-01-*-49.01) containing a total of approximately 2.7 acres in District 2,
Brevard County, Florida. The proposed development includes 11 single-family homes. The
School Impact Analysis of this proposed development has been undertaken and the following
information is provided for your use.

The calculations used to analyze the prospective student impact are consistent with the
methodology outlined in Section 13.2 and Amended Appendix "A’-Schooal District Student
Generation Multiplier (approved April 11, 2022) of the interlocal Agreement for Public School
Facility Planning & School Concurrency (ILA-2014). The following capacity analysis is
perfarmed using capacities/projected students as shown in years 2023-24 to 2027-28 of the
Brevard County Public Schools Financially Feasible Plan for School Years 2022-23 to 2027-
28 which is attached for reference.

Single-Family Homes Sp— i ——— o
Student Calculated Rounded
Students Generated Generation Students Number of
Rates Generated Students
Elementary 0.24 2.64 3
Middle 0.07 0.77 1
High . ~0.12] 132 | 1
_ Total 043 . 5

Planning & Project Management
Facilities Services
Phone: (321) 633-1000 k11418 - FAX: (321) 633-4646

iy

/ﬂ\
, o)
An Equal Opportunity Employer (L) /
o 33



FISH Capacity (including relocatable classrooms) from the
Financially Feasible Plan (FFP) Data and Analysis for School Years 2023-24 to

2027-28
School 2023-24 2024-25  2025-26  2026-27 l 2027-28
Tropical 910 910 910 910 910
Jefferson 873 813 873 873 873
Merritt [sland 1,962 1,962 1,962 1,962 1,962
Projected Student Membership
School 2023-24 2024-26 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Tropical 669 614 600 572 545
Jefferson 608 600 609 563 548

Merritt Island

1,546 1,612 1,467 1437 1454

s Generated by Newly Is

sued SCADL Reservations Since FFP

School 2023-24 2024-26 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Tropical . . . - .
Jefferson 1 1 1
Merritt Island 2 2
Cumulative Students Generated by
Proposed Development
School 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Tropical 0 1 3 3
defferson 0 0 1 1
Merritt Island 0 1 1 1
Total Projected Student Membership (includes
Cumulative Impact of Proposed Development)
School 2023-24 2024-26 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
Tropical 669 614 601 575 548
defferson 608 600 610 565 550
Merritt Island 1,546 1,612 1460 1,440 1,457
Projected Available Capacity =
FISH Capacity - Total Projected Student Membership

School 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28
Tropical 241 296 309 335 362
dJefferson 265 273 263 308 323
Merritt [sland 416 450 502 522 505

Atthis time, Trapical Elementary School, Jefferson Middle School, and Merritt Island Senior High
School are projected to have enough capacity for the total of projected and potential students

from the Villas at River Paims development.

Page 20f3 _

34



This Is a non-binding review; a Concurrency Determination must be performed by the School
District prior to a Final Development Order and the issuance of a Concurrency Evaluation
Finding of Nondeficiency by the Local Government.

We appreciate the opportunity to review this proposed project. Please let us know if you
require additional information.

Sincerely,

,/ﬂ(,m- Wlacs

Karen M. Black, AICP R
Manager - Facilities Planning & Intergovernmental Coordination
Planning & Project Management, Facilities Services

Enclosure: Brevard County Public Schools Financially Feasible Plan for School Years
2022-23 fo 2027-28
Copy: Susan Hann, AICP, Assistant Superintendent of Facility Services

File CD-2023-19

David G. Lindemann, AICP, Director of Planning & Project Management,
Facilities Services
File CD-2023-19

Page 3 of

35



Electronic Artigllgs of Organization hﬁ;@gg&gﬁg&
Florida Limited Liability Company -Sﬁ . Of State
jnhorne
Article I

The name of the Limited Liability Company is:
VILLAS AT RIVER PALMS LLLC

Article 11
The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is:

8255 CASCADE ST
SUITE 120
COMMERCE TWP, MI. UN 48382

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

8255 CASCADE ST
SUITE 120
COMMERCE TWP, MI. UN 48382

Article 111

The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is:

RIVER PALMS MOBILE HOME PARK ASSOC LP
200 S BANANA RIVER DR
MERRITT ISLAND, FL.. 32952

Having been named as registered agent and (o accept service of process for the above stated limited

liability company at the place designated in this cerlificate, I hereby aceept the appointment as registered

agent and agree (o acl in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the provisions of all statutes
relating to the proper and complete performance of my duties, and [ am familiar with and accept the
obligations of my position as registered agent.

Registered Agent Signature: TERESA SCHENK

36



Planning and Development
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way

Buildi AR 114
revard mrRA uidng A Roon 11

321-633-2070

L/

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Application for Zoning Action, Comprehensive Plan Amendment, or
Variance

Applications must be submitted in person. Please call 321-633-2070 for an appointment at
least 24 hours in advance. Mailed, emailed, or couriered applications will not be accepted.

pze 292 006 4D

Existing FLU: _ﬂ/& ) Existing Zoning: K M - )///_____

Proposed FILLU: I —_ Proposed Zoning: KM ) é 8_______

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

If the owner is an LLC, include a copy of the operating agreement.

yianve!E Koleq _ o

Name(s) Company o

Z / - — | — F e, - —
z._g_@;ﬁjf:og A we (KiT zS’JéMé’FjA 32355
Street City sk State Zip Code
A U_ﬁ_/ (30764 176y @_f‘(-f--:faa/ 63 _'303-2!@2?
Email - Phone Cell

APPLICANT INFORMATION IF DIFFERENT FROM OWNER:

Attorney Agent Contract Purchaser Other ;

_ S#ap=

Name(s) Company
Street City State Zip Code
Email B ~ Phone Cell



Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CP) (greater than 10 acres)

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CP) (less than 10 acres)

Text Amendment (CP): Element . S

Other Amendment (CP): -

2 ; Rezoning Without CUP (RWOC)

Combination Rezoning and CUP (CORC)

Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
Binding Development Plan (BDP)

Binding Development Plan (BDP) (Amendment)

Binding Development Plan (BDP) (Removal)

Variance(s) (V) (building permits will not be approved until 30 days after the date the
order is signed)

Administrative Approval of Setbacks, Lot Size, or Accessory Structures
Administrative Approval of Flag Lot or Easement

Administrative Approval of On-Premises Consumption of Alcohalic Beverages for
Restaurants / Snack Bars

Other Action:

Acreage of Request: O i g 9\

Reason for Request:

WAW7§ a &;;%M‘W/ é;}/; rs [/Wa/'};%e’/ ﬁ/y/‘fs

107 4 7’7@%‘2,,/.)

38



The undersigned understands this application must be complete and accurate prior to
advertising a public hearing:

—_ ‘Z] | am the owner of the subject property, or if corporation, | am the officer of the
corporation authorized to act on this request.

U I'am the legal representative of the owner of the subject property of this application.
(Notarized Authorization to Act must be submitted with application)

—> An approval of this application does not entitle the owner to a development permit.

For Variances, | understand that building permits will not be approved until 30 days after
the date the order is signed, in order to comply with the appeal procedure.

———> | certify that the information in this application and all sketches and data attached to and
made part hereof are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

M@':M_[g Ly F15/24

Signature of Prope}t_y Owner or Date
Authorized Representative

/|
State of [ il

. i 1 %
County of ﬁ’..l‘*grr-_\‘-';l;l A

Subscribed and sworn before me, by __/physical presence or ___ online notarization,

, —
this M@ day ofj‘_LJ?_ 208N personally appeared

MM“@C/_ .1&5 124 ) % is personally known‘to“ﬁaor produced

g/é '!, :
ﬁotary blic Sign tyre

as identification, and who did / did not take an oath

—

Seal

", LISBET M, DIONIZIO
i:: Commission # HH 218153
e Expires January 20, 2026




- /\) _ I

Office Use Only: Li

Accela No. 3'{/1/0 Fee: {} gog Date Filed: 7/5//3/ District No. 7~
Tax Account No. (list all that apply) }[/;L éé 44

Parcel I.D. No.
27 2L 35 o) 4 /
Twp Rng Sec Sub Block Lot/Parcel
Planner: /742, sign Issuedto: (7. £, Nofification Radius: fﬁ‘D
MEETINGS DATE TIME
[Dfer /244 3/
[ ] PSJBoard
[ ] NMi Board _ ;
D LPA B

Efsfc /77757/ by 7))

Wetland survey required by Natural Resources O Yes O No Initials

Is the subject property located in a JP or 500 feet of the Palm Bay Extension?

Des O No ityes, list /P L ZA

Location of subject property: ‘. /ﬂ—) Y&
SW Connes a /ﬂ/‘ffp/%‘%zéﬂaﬂ

Description of Request: e
frvone. Zu-1-1 70 RAFT

40



ACCELA # M o ' ——— o ———

DOCUMENT SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

[ T - - 1T e
b "
= % B . g8
£l gl S a g g|%
el gl § Slw g% Il 5|8
a 3 m %] Pl ~ = 2 ]
b+ N 7] E > © a = E £
<| g|© @ N Ble|l el 36| =&
11 S(%F|5|"|8lzials|8|8|% 53
S|2|E[z] & 3lz|£/5[g|%|€[E|8
JHEREHEEHEEEREREEE
2| 9l o] & v/ 85| 6 a| 2| 3| ol wl| §
EIS|2|2|&|E|5|S|.l8(al828]elelé
%gaa-gaéS%aEﬁfnS@%m
al 3ol ¥l 5] 215§ 2| 2|3 S| 8| %8| g|5|a|l
Application type <l <|x| 2|8/ & 88|23 22|38 2
T NUMBER OF COPIES REQUIRED ]
Staff to check indjcating receipt PEE e
Comprehensive Plan Amendment® 143,01 12 2, 10 J1,[. ., 1 Vd > gy //
| Zoning request VIX[ VIV W VXX vV * v |
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 101 f1 [1 [1f 1 1 i _ Y |
AA - Waiver 11 1 P A
|l AA - Easement or Flag lot ol 11 11 [ ¥
Variance - ___ 171 1 (1 ]1 |1 ‘ L)* 1y ]|
1 T B

*Authorization to Act form is required, if other than the owner of record is making the application. If the property is not
owned In entirety, by the applicant, either a Form “A”, or a notarized letter must accompany the application giving
written consent by all property owners of the subject property.

*Legal Description must be typed on a separate sheet, if not easily described on the deed.

*School Board Concurrency application is required if the request represents an increase of more than one residential
unit,

“Wetland Su rvey required on Commercial or Industrial property.
‘cup applications require a completed worksheet and a sketch plan with the application signed by a planner.

*Must include Comprehensive Plan Amendment supplemental form reviewed by a planner prior to submitting formal
application. The supplement must include a written statement explaining the rational and the appropriate data and
analysis necessary to support the proposed change,

"Administrative waivers requiring a signed affidavit from al| abutting property owners indicating no objection to the
requested waiver of lot size, width or depth requirement. The affidavit must state the specific request.

? Survey must be submitted if requested by staff.

*Variance Hardship Worksheet must be filled out completely, addressing the six criteria for a hardship.

*Additional information may be requested by staff dependent upon the requested action. These include but are not
limited to impact analysis studies:

Traffic Impact Analysis {TIA): TIA must be submitted if required by the County Traffic Engineer. Analysis methodology must be
coordinated with the Traffic Engineering Office

Environmental Impact Analysis: The analysis must be conduicted by a qualified environmental professional and dated less than one

vearold. The analysis must document the types of habitat found on site; identify vegetation types, soils types, wetlands, floodplain;
and any other environmental concerns.

Water and Sewer Dernang: Identify the potable water and sanitary sewer demand for the amendment based on the current and
proposed future land use deslgnations using the per capita water and wastewater standards of the applicable service provider,

e

- i
ev, 19 ) - '

5

41



—

CALCULATION OF PUBLIC HEARING APPLICATION FEES -ZONING OFFICE

PUBLIC HEARING APPLICATION FEES

REZONING

Environmental Area

Residential Professional

General Use and Agricultural Use
Single-Family Residential
Single-Famity Mobile Home
Commercial/Planned Commercial
Tourist Commercial
Industrial/Planned Industrial
Planned Unit Development
Single-Family Attached Residential
Muitiple-Family Residential
Recreational Vehicle Park

Mobile Home Park/Mobile Home Co-op

CUP'S OR ROU APPLICATIONS
Fee per request (with rezoning)
Fee per request (without rezoning)

OTHER APPLICATION FEES

Consultant fee Retainer per Tower Application

Transfer of Development Rights

Comprehensive Plan Appeals (Vested Rights)
One (5.0 acres or less) Single-family residential
All other Appeals

Variance/Appeals of Administrative Interpretatian
Base Fee
Fee for each additional request

Special Hearing Fee for P & Z / LPA

Special Hearing Fee for BOA

All Other Unlisted Zoning Applications

Miscellaneous

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS
Small Scale Amendment

Large Scale Amendment

Maximum Fee on a Single Application

FEES COLLECTED FOR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS
Office of Natural Resources zoning review (if applicable)
flag lot &/or easement review
Land Development PUD review
flag lot &/or easement review
Address Assignment review of flag lot 8/or easement
Zoning fee

BASE FEE ADJUSTMENTS

* If area for these requests have the potential for only
one more lot, the fee is

** Maximum acreage fees for these requests shall be

*** Maximum Planned Unit Development Fee shall be

=+ Maximum fee for all other zoning requests shall be

BASE FEE ACREAGE FEE UNIT FEE SUB-TOTAL

511.00
896000
849,00
849 00
849 00"
1,184.00
1,855.00
1,855.00
5,661.00
960.00
960.00
1,408.00
1,408.00

G ———

447 00
84900

6,934 00
1,520 00

433.00
1,733.00

598 00
182 00
3,692.00
1,872.00
849 00

919 00
1,785.00
17,334 00

100.00
150 00
100.00
277.00

288.00
2,240.00
13,432 00
8,955.00

Rev 119-7017

-5) x 24**
-5) x 24**
-5) x 24**
) x 24
) x 45

) x 45 Az
) x 45 y W
2 vz —g5eP

}x 24
) x 24

$43 per acre

SUB-TOTAL ***free

Bpp. oV

TOTAL /

42



*

=
Larevard

Planning & Development

Central Cashier
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way
Bullding A, Room 114

Planning & Melbourne, FL 32940
Development
RECEIPT OF PAYMENT
Payment Date: 7/15/2024
Receipt #: 761526
Transaction Id#
Payment Method Payment Reference # Amount Paid Comments
Cash $1,333.00
$1,333.00 Total
245 LEJEUNE DR, MERRITT ISLAND, FL 32953
Rezoning $1,333.00
24200040
Fee Invoice # Amount
Application Processing Fee 930881 $25.00
Rezoning Multiple Family Residential 930884 $1,008.00
Rezoning Nalural Resources Review 930897 $300.00
Grand Total $1,333.00

Additional Fees may apply to obtain a Certificate of Completion, a Certificate of Occupancy, Pre-Power, or Final Inspection.
To verify fees please visit the Brevard County Planning & Development Search.

www.brevardcounty.us/PlanningDev
P (321) 633-2068 F (321) 633-2052

Receipt_AA_2016 S



Zoning Information Worksheet

ownartsr_/Nenne]  BUTER

(Does this match the warranty deed?)
Applicant(s): 5%”‘5
(Does this person haveylhori?ion from everyone listed on the warranty deed?)

Parcel ID#: }y/%/zfld/ /4//

(If more than one parcel, they must share a property line to be on the same application.)

Present Zoning: ﬂ%d/‘— //

Is there a BDP or a CUP on the p,roperty? Yes/No:_/¥ p (If yes, attach BDP)
Existing BDP states: __//2"//

Requested Zoning/CUP: /\///-“’;2 = \75

)
BDP Requested? Yes@

If CUP Request, do you have a CUP worksheet filled out by the applicant? Yes/No

Previously Approved Zoning Actions on lot:

2- 2950

Is this a non-conforming lot of record? Ye[@r\/hy?

Non-Conforming to:

Is this a substandard lot? Yeg/No: ¥Why?

What is the FLU Designation of the property?: W&
» s the requested zoning consistent with the FLU@VO (See compatibility table)

» Ifno, what is the requested small scale plan amendment? (Must be 10 acres or less)

Character of the Area ~ List the recent zoning changes in same section? (Last 3 years)

Action #, Date of action_g_nd State_a_ what changed? . ' J ‘

2. D) 200075 - B~/ Fo ZH-2-15 S‘/s”’/o? ) Y0 et gnS. Sy
2 2)/1‘4/(7//":75’0 S5 fue e 0 (0_trerd. //9[0 Bosnl /¢ !//,{//51-3 iz »}e?'?’?

V178 5}!5“-7;’J?1J’ﬂ/::-/4noz :.*,//;’-z.w//,é,é- %C;Q(/élﬂé’J:.n—‘h' 2?:'0

P3N0 00007 = fhg 70 FOFbnodin 12)2/25 Z ~ 5. gt
) / § o II pf v, - ’ﬂysﬂ_} ,..l Sine

A, 28 lrnsT g 5y w»ww'—/ &7 thean'st zf,,w,- @)/,{,,/@d:z

/

4



If this is a CUP request, list all CUP’s on adjacent properties: /\//4

Wl of 1/ | {
Abutting property zoning: N /g pe® g ﬂ/’[’]"% E ﬂ‘? W ﬁM ‘l’) /‘
JPA/Special Board/Special Section?éz/;)No (Circle one and make a note on the application) PSJ, N@

ROCKLEDGE, MELBOURNE, PALM SHORES, TITUSVILLE, PALM BAY or within 500' of PALM BAY EXTE ION

Reason for Rezoning Request: Zﬂj /_ /7 W fgﬁ"c:l —8

e If proposing single-family or muiti-family how many units? ;“

* If proposing a CUP for alcohol, how many seats? Bar or Restaurant?
o Do you have a certified survey indicating there are no churches or schools within 400'? Yes/No
o Do you have a site plan showing the layout and parking configuration? Yes/No
o Do you have a CUP worksheet filled out by the applicant? Yes/No
= Ifthe request is for commercial zoning, do you have a wetland survey that includes a legal description
of the wetland? Yes/No (If no, NR must have checked no on the front of the application)

7 s
Existing structures/uses on the property? / JpSse W ij?b%zéf/-// c/%'-,;,o,;,

Describe the character of the area based upon Administration Policy 3 of FLUE (attached):
/4’?9"5""?/ "/"r A ) fﬂa-’:‘) 4 f.’ﬂ’-»‘!?“a‘--:—:'é;a'/; L SAp ,4' ) l@/’-" ://z ¥ g}[“' Lol ¢

Concerns raised as part of request: Jfﬁé{/ 7{, :/ 70 A er 5}7 v/f’fﬁ’;v :

7 : _ 77 7 ’
Other options discussed with applicant: L e WVoriprees /f r’//t'v/: L | /‘gggyjﬁ/
Ve Lam o A— b /’wa/r—/ LS gt

Did you print out the Property Appraiser's Map for this property?
Did you mark the map?
Did you stamp the deed(s)? 4

e

Date




Administrative Policy 3

Compatibility with existing or proposed land uses shall be a factor in determining where a rezoning
or any application involving a specific proposed use is being considered. Compatibility shall be
cvaluated by considering the following factors, at a minimum:

Criteria:

A. Whether the proposed use(s) would have hours of operation, lighting, odor, noise levels,
traffic, or site activity that would significantly diminish the enjoyment of, safety or quality of
life in existing neighborhoods within the area which could foresee ably be affected by the
proposed use;

B. Whether the proposed use(s) would cause a material reduction (five percent or more) in the
value of existing abutting lands or approved development.

C. Whether the proposed use(s) is/are consistent with an emerging or existing pattern of
surrounding development as determined through an analysis of:

1. Historical land use patterns;
2. Actual development over the immediately preceding three years; and
3. Development approved within the past three years but not yet constructed.

D. Whether the proposed use(s) would result in a material violation of relevant policies in any

elements of the Comprehensive Plan.

46



Notice to Applicants for Change of Land Use

The Planning and Zoning Office staff will be preparing a package of wrilten comments concerning your request. These
comments will be provided to the Planning and Zoning Board and Board of County Commissioners. The comments will

address the following:

The current zoning of the property along with its current development potential and comsistency with the Brevard
County Comprehensive Plan use and density restrictions.

The proposed zoning of the property along with its development potential and Consistency with the Board County
Comprehensive Plan use and density restrictions.

The proposal's impact on services, such as roads and schoals,
The proposal's impact upon hurricane evacuation, if applicable.

Environmental factors.

Compatibility with surrounding land uses.
Cousistency with the character of the area,

You may place your own written comments regarding thess items into the record. Up to two typewritten pages can be included
m the package if received 10 working days prior to the Planning and Zoning Roard hearing. You ave not requited to provide
written comments. An Applicant presentation to the Planning and Zoning Board iy required regardless of written submittaly
The board may approve the requesred classification or a classification which is more intensive than the existing classification,

but less intensive than the requested classification,

Staff comments will be available approxumately one week prior to the Planming and Zonmng Board heaning. These comments
will be made available to you al that time. In order to expedite receipt of staff’s comments, please provide an e-mail address or
fax number below. Alternatively, a copy of stall’s comunents will be mailed via the U.S. Postal Service

NQTES:
O TIf your application gencrates public apposition, as may be expressed in letters, petitions, phane calls,

testimony, ete., you are advised to meel with concerned parties in an effort to resolve differences prior to the
BCC taking final action on the request; therefore, you are encouraged to meet with affected property owners
prior to the public hearing by the Planning & Zoning Board/Local Planning Agency (P&Z/LPA). During the
course of conducting the public hearing, if the P&Z/LPA finds the application is controversial, and the
applicant has not met with affected property owners, the item shall be tabled to the next agenda to allow such a
meeting to take place. If the item is controversial, despite the applicant’s efforts to meet with alfected property
owners, the P&Z/LPA may include, in their motion, a requirement to meet with interested parties again prior
to the BCC public hearing, The BCC may also table your request in order for you to meet with interested
parties, if this bas not occurred prior to the public hearing before the BCC. If you need assistance to identify
these parties, please contact the Planuing & Zoning Office.

9 BCC approval of a zoning application does not vest a praject nov ensure issuance of a permit. At the time of
permit application, land development reguiations and concurrency-related level of service standards must be

met.
Please transmit staff’s comments via o
—’/’._
S S G T _(oru.s@_
e-mail address fax number —_— Yes/MNo

11 47



CFN 2021264235, OR BK 9286 Page 104, Recorded 10/08/2021 at 02:15 PM Rachel M.

Sadoff, Clerk of Courts, Brevard County Doc. D: $1960.00

FE{FS INSTRUMENT CONTAINS THE OFFICIAL
3&100?-") FOCK AND PAGE NUMBERS DESCLIBING
THE PARCELS TO 31 ADVER TG 0,

Documentary Deed Tax $1,960.00 )

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO. __ MML 8

Stephanie Smith NP

ls!:cl:)xd Title & Escrow Agency Ine. S’ GNATURE
UZ’MS N Courtenay Pkwy

Memntt Island, FL 32953

File No 21-3369

e — —

____ SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDING DATA

THIS WARRANTY DEED, made the 7th day of October, 2021 by Andrew C. Weiss and Amber E. Weiss, husband and

wife, heremn called the grantors, to Manuel Buten, a single man, whose post office address 1s 245 LeJeune Dr , Memitt Island,
FL 32953, heremafter called the Grantee:

5

(Wherever used herein the terms "grantor” and "grantee” wclude all the parties to this istrument and the hews, legal

representatives and assigns of mdmiduals, and the successors and assigns of corporations)

WITNESSETH That the grantors, for and n consideration of the sum of TEN AND 00/100'S (810 00) Dollars and other
valuable considerations, receipt whereof 18 hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, bargains, sells, aliens, remises, releases, conveys

and confirms unio the grantee all that certamn land sttuate in BREVARD County, State of Florida, viz..

Lot 1, Block A, REPLAT OF MERRITT LAKES ESTATES, according to the plat thereof as recorded in
Plat Book 11, Page 16, of the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida; and also, that part of Lot 2, Block
A, Replat of Merritt Lakes estates, described as follows:

Begin at the Northeasterly corner of said Lot 2, Block A, thence run the Northerly line of said Lot 2, Block
A, Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of said Lot 2, Block A, thence run the Westerly line of said Lot
2, Block A, Southeasterly 24 feet to a point, thence run Northeasterly and parallel to and 24 feet distance
from the Northerly line of said Lot 2, Block A, to the Easterly line of said Lot 2, Block A, thence run
Northwesterly along the Easterly line of said Lot 2, Block A, 24 feet to the Polut of Beginning.

Subject to easements, restrictions and reservations of record and to taxes for the

vear 2021 and thereafter.

TOGETHER, with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertamning

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same n fee simple forever

AND, the grantors hereby covenant with saxd grantee that the grantors are lawfully seized of said land m fee simple; that the
grantors have good night and lawful authority to sell and convey said land, and hereby warrant the title to said land and will
defend the same aganst the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever, and that said land 1s free of all encumbrances, excepl taxes

aceruing subsequent to December 31, 2020

12

48



OR BK 9286 PG 105

\ Page Two of Warranty Deed

E IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the said grantors have signed and sealed these presents the day and year first above written.

Sigued, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Windss #1 Signamre Andrew C, Weiss T

1720 Sandy Ct, Mezritt Island, FL 32952
V\QQV\D-V'\ %&Q_%Y\ S
Witness #1 Printed Name

Witness #2 Signature o
Witness #2 Printed Name

STATEOF _ OWnO

COUNTY OF Cu_;};_cxho:::la

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ﬁ/physical presence or [ ] online notarization this (.D‘Aday

of October, 2021 by Andrew C. Weiss who is personally known to me or have produced __ ok riverS hicense as
identification. FLoatDA

i gy,
\~“\‘\‘ ARIAL

LAURA BETH NELSON

NOTARY PUBLIC - OHIO d) W
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 05-25-26 DA ke :
Notary Public

AAO LA, Dei k\e.\scn
Printed Notary Name

My Commission Expires: %5 -3 -3,

13 49



OR BK 9286 PG 106

Page Three of Warranty Deed

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said grantors have signed and sealed these presents the day and year first above written

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of

NI

Witness #1 Signanifg
TAMMY WILLIAMS

Witness #1 Printed Name

_Z ;@/ A (222@/4'/44’
Witness #2 ¢ |gng’t::m

Elaine Mahnke

Witness #2 Printed Name

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

Mmboir Zideias

Amber E Wess
1720 Sandy Ct, Memtt Island, FL 32952

o
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [‘}@mal presence or [ ] online notanzation this Z day

of October, 2021 by Amber E. Weiss who 1s personally known to me or have produced

ONPU,  ELAINEE. MAKNKE
g Commission # HH 094027

T open0  Bondod They BudgelNatary Gervces

identification.

S
SEAL SRIGESS  Exphespii20, 2025
My Commission Expires-

)
[

Ok fletdes. 88
AL L LA
Notary Public
Printed Nota_ry_I\ia_n_le ) -

14

50



NATURAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Zoning Review & Summary
Item No. 23200067

Applicant. Edward Fleis (Owner: Villas at River Palms, LLC)

Zoning Request: BU-2 to RU-1-7

Note: to develop 11 single family homes

Zoning Hearing: 10/14/2024; BCC Hearing: 11/07/2024

Tax ID No.(s): 2438912, 2438913, 2438914, 2438915, 2438917 and 2438918

This is a preliminary review based on best available data maps reviewed by the Natural
Resources Management Department (NRM) and does not include a site inspection to
verify the accuracy of the mapped information.

In that the rezoning process is not the appropriate venue for site plan review, specific
site designs submitted with the rezoning request will be deemed conceptual. Board
comments relative to specific site design do not provide vested rights or waivers from
Federal, State or County regulations.

This review does not guarantee whether or not the proposed use, specific site
design, or development of the property can be permitted under current Federal,
State, or County Regulations.

Summary of Mapped Resources and Noteworthy Land Use Issues:

Coastal High Hazard Area

Floodplain Protection

Indian River Lagoon Nitrogen Reduction Septic Overlay
Surface Waters of the State

Protected and Specimen Trees

Potential Code Enforcement

Land Use Comments:

Coastal High Hazard Area

Nearly the entirety of these properties are located within the Coastal High Hazard Area
(CHHA) as defined by Florida Statute 163.3178(2)(h), and as shown on the CHHA Map.
The Coastal Management Element of the Comprehensive Plan, Policy 6.1, designates
Coastal High Hazard Areas to be those areas below the elevation of the Category 1
storm surge elevation as defined in Chapter 163, Florida Statute. The parcel may be
susceptible to nuisance flooding.

Floodplain Protection

The entire property is mapped within the estuarine floodplain as identified by FEMA
and as shown on the FEMA SFHA Map. The property is subject to the development
criteria in Conservation Element Objective 4, its subsequent policies, and the
Floodplain Ordinance. Chapter 62, Article X, Division 6 states, "No site alteration shall
adversely affect the existing surface water flow pattern.” Chapter 62, Article X, Division
5, Section 62-3723 (2) states, "Development within floodplain areas shall not have

adverse impacts upon adjoining properties."
51



Indian River Lagoon Nitrogen Reduction Septic Overlay

The entire property is mapped within the Indian River Lagoon Nitrogen Reduction
Overlay. Per Chapter 46, Article Il, Division IV - Nitrogen Reduction Overlay, if adequate
sewer for the development is not available, then the use of an alternative septic system,
designed to provide at least 65% total nitrogen reduction through multi-stage treatment
processes, shall be required. NRM requires a Septic Maintenance Notice be filed with
the Brevard Clerk of Courts.

Surface Waters of the State

The subject property is located on the Indian River Lagoon, designated as a Class I
Water, Outstanding FL Water, and Aquatic Preserve in this location. A 50-foot Surface
Water Protection Buffer is required. Primary structures shall be located outside the
Buffer. Accessory structures are permittable within the Buffer with conditions (e.g.,
storm water management is provided, avoidance/minimization of impacts, and
maximum 30% impervious). The removal of native vegetation located within the Buffer
is prohibited unless approved through an active development order. Temporary
impacts to native vegetation require in-kind restoration. The Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP) regulates mangrove trimming and can be reached at
407-897-4101. The applicant is encouraged to contact NRM at 321-633-2016 prior
to any activities, plan, or permit submittal.

Protected and Specimen Trees

Protected (>= 10 inches in diameter) and Specimen Trees (>= 24 inches in diameter)
may exist on the parcel. Brevard County Landscaping, Land Clearing and Tree
Protection ordinance, Section 62-4331(3), encourages the protection of Specimen
Trees. The applicant is advised to refer to Article XIII, Division 2, entitled Land
Clearing, Landscaping, and Tree Protection, for specific requirements for preservation
and canopy coverage requirements. Applicant should contact NRM at 321-633-2016
prior to performing any land clearing activities.

Potential Code Enforcement

Information available to NRM indicates that unpermitted land clearing and land
alteration activities may have occurred on this property between 2021 and 2023. This
includes impacts in the surface water protection buffer. The confirmation of
unpermitted land clearing activities may result in code enforcement action.

52



! y’
MERRITT ISLAND
SRESIVELIIVENT 75T o

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting

September 26, 2024
ITEM IV. A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: New Business
PROJECT: Merritt Park Place Grove Street Parking Lot Acquisition
Requested Action: Presentation, Discussion, and Authorization to Proceed with the Due

Diligence Approval and Acquisition Process with Brevard County

Summary Explanation & Background:

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency has been instrumental in the vision, design, and
redevelopment of Merritt Park Place since circa 1998, planning and funding several Infrastructure,
Parking, Streetscape, Beautification, and Irrigation Improvements to McLeod, Grove, Parnell,
Myrtice, Hibiscus, and Tangerine Streets, including entrance signage, streetlighting, medians,
landscaping, irrigation, and crosswalks.

The MIRA Redevelopment Plan cites Public Parking as an ongoing activity, and Chapters 6-10 state
that the lack of public parking has become a significant issue. This issue limits the attraction of quality
businesses, clients, and consumer activity that would add to Merritt Park Place's economic vibrancy,
customer base, community experience, safety, and business appeal. Unconventional lot sizes and
shapes limit the ability to assemble and redevelop sites and promising projects, sometimes conflict
with the Brevard County Code requirements given the unique character of Merritt Park Place.

The MIRA Board has identified significant issues in Merritt Park Place that remain to be addressed.
These issues limit the attraction of quality redevelopment projects. The primary problems are the lack
of neighborhood or regional stormwater retention systems and neighborhood public parking areas. An
opportunity has arisen to acquire a private parking lot, already improved, within a strategic area of
Merritt Park Place for public parking purposes.

This agenda item is for the MIRA Board to discuss this opportunity and recommend proceeding with
the process leading to Brevard County's acquisition of the property to be assigned under MIRA's
management, utilizing MIRA funding for this purpose.

Fiscal Impact: $190,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Information




Merritt Park Place Press

June, 1999

Update

Letter from Outgoing President

Even though the
Governor cut MIRA's
request for funding the
sewer installation for the
balance of Merritt Park
Place, the first phase of
the sewer installation,
Grove & Mcleod Streets,
is still a “go” project!
Construction should
begin on July 6 for the
underground portion of
the  project. The
contractor will be onsite
for approximately ninety
(90) days, at which time
the Brevard County Public
Works and Road & Bridge
Departments will assume
construction

responsibility.  They wili
resurface  the street,
allowing  for  angled

parking, etc.

The MSBU ballot will be
sent during the month of
July, so that results can
| be determined as to

whether paver  brick
sidewalks, decorative
lighting, benches and
landscaping  will  be

installed on Grove &
MclLeod Streets.

Again, be aware that
construction commences
on Grove & Mcleod

This has certainly been a busy year
far Merritt Park. I've been so proud
to represent our membership in the
community. Thank you for this
opportunity you have given me to
work with you to benefit our
community and establish friendships
that will remain long after this year
is over,

The community outside the park is
anxiously awaiting the

| redevelopment of Merritt Park. 1am

approached frequently by people
with questions and positive support
for the project. As you might expect
the most asked question is, when
will the redevelopment begin, and
the most supportive statement is,
about time something like this
happens in Merritt Istand, this will
really put us on the map. My
sentiments  exactly. So  much
strategic planning over the past nine
years has gone into this worthwhile
project. lust in this past year, much
progress has been made. Most
important has been the funding
sources that have committee to the
underground portion of the project,
$752,538, all being funded by the
EPA/St.  Johns  River  Water
Management District, Brevard
County Surface Water Management,
Brevard County Road & Bridge, and
last but not least, Merritt Island
Redevelopment Agency (MIRA). Itis
time now for the plan to be put into
action. The end of July, 1999 is the
projected start date for the
underground portion of the project
(Phase 1), with a completion time of
three (3) months. Planning for the
second phase is aimost at an end.
The Merritt Park Place Design
Committee has been working with

Doug Robertson of MIRA on
above ground upgrades and on
lowering the original cost of
these upgrades. The cost began
around $700,000, and the
committee, without
compromising the quality of the
upgrades, has brought the cost
down by one-half. Some of the
credit to lowering the cost also is
due to a Community
Development Block Grant of
$18,000 and to $55,000 from the
Metropolitan Planning
Organization for the sidewalks.
The committee still has a meeting
scheduled with Doug & FPL to
work on the cost of the upgraded
lighting.  This is expected to
finalize the upgrade package. In
the meantime, Doug has been
meeting with property owners to
discuss sidewalk easements &
the Municipal Service Benefit
Unit (MSBU). The deadline for
the MSBU is quickly approaching.
It seems as though every thing is
in order and property owners are
in agreement - only a few more
need ta be contacted. The MSBU
should be finalized and in effect
prior to completion of the first
phase.

Obviously, we didn’t do this
alone. On behalf of the Merritt
Park Group Association, | would
like to extend my thanks to
MIRA, our County
Commissioners, and countless
others, that helped us achieve
our goals this year. A very special
thanks to Doug Robertson for the
commitment and countless hours
he has devoted to this project.
Without Doug's professional

expertise, we would not be
this far along.

To Sandee Natowich, our
incoming  chairperson, my
thanks for your support and
counsel. Most especially,
thank you for spearheading
the whole idea of Merritt
Park.

To the membership, my thank
you for your  continuing
commitment to our
organization. | look forward
to seeing vyou at our
September meeting.

MPPG

Elections

The following is a list of the
MPPG Board of Directors:

®  Sandee Natowich,
Chairman

e  Richard Champon,
Vice Chairman

® Linda Coontz,
Treasurer

e Dick Day,
Secretary

¢  Debra McGirr,
Asst. Secretary

®  DanJones

® Linda Molica

@  Don Shannon
® Linda Sewell

@  Ginny Lambkin
©  Ralph DeBlois
©  Beth Kring

@  Susie Palmer

MPPG Property of the Month: Lasco Enterprises!

54



vm-.-a:m _lo._“ ., ok . = ¥ & K , S Legend

Write a description for your map. | e / S\, T . | R SR\, 4  Feature

Feature 2
@ Lostt Garden Tattoos




. Grove looking North

Write a description for your map.

Legend o
Feature 1
Feature 2

“  Lostt Garden Tattoos

LT

>

=

il\iﬁ

el

A2 e
1]

T

A

b




Location, Tax, and Legal

Tax Account
2427087

County

Brevard

General County Location

Central
Elementary School

Mila

High School
Merrict lsfand

Tax Year

202

[N

Directions

Parcel Number
24-36-35-32-0000k.0-0001.00

MLS Area Major

251 - Central Merritt Island

Subdivision Name
Merrit Park Place
Micclle School
Jeffersor

Tax Annual Amount

126,14

Tax Legal Description
MERRITT PARIKCPFLACE LOTS 1.2 BLK &

From SRS head west on Merart ave. Then turn lefr on N Grove St Property 15 an your right

57



0 N N. Grove X Close

Merritt Island, FL 32953
$190,000 #1015130 Active

Media Description Location Listing Details

More Information ~

General Property Information

Road Frontage Feet Lot Size Acres
105 0.3

Lot Size Square Feet CDD Fee YN
13,068 No

tist Price/Acre
633,333.33

Remarks and Miscellaneous

Public Remarks

perritt Park Place!! This double lot has 18 parking places, a cencrete dumpster pad and room to build
Uthnes already in place including water meter, Power meter, sevser hook up. Electric panel, street
ighting and fully automatic sprinkler system.

Closing Company Details

Closing Company Name
Countywide Title

Current Use

Other

Development Status

Completed

58



LISTiNg petalls

Contract Information

Current Price
$190,000

Property Sub Type
Unimproved Land

Location, Tax, and Legal

Tax Account
2427087

County
Brevard

General County Location

Central

Elementary School
Mila

High School
Merritt Island

Tax Year
2023

Directions

Original List Price
$200,000

Comp Sale YN
No

Parcel Number
24-36-35-32-0000k.0-0001.00

MLS Area Major
251 - Central Merritt Island

Subdivision Name
Merritt Park Place

Middle School
Jefferson

Tax Annual Amount
1,126.14

Tax Legal Description
MERRITT PARK PLACE LOTS 1,2 BLKK

From SR3 head west on Merritt Ave. Then turn left on N. Grove St. Property Is on your right

More Information

General Property Information

Road frontage Feet
105

Lot Size Square Feet
13,068

List Price/Acre

633,333.33

Lot Size Acres
0.3

CDD Fee YN
No

59



Description
Merritt Park Place!! This double lot has 18 parking places, a concrete dumpster pad and room to build.
Utilities already in place including water meter, Power meter, sewer haok up. Electiic panel, street

fighting and fully automatic sprinkler system.

Location
1
f. lﬂ. SUNSET LAKES THE SAVANNAHS
Pint & Pistol@
— Port Canaveral
=) Kelly Park East o
Brevard Museum __ i Rl
of History and Natural.., k.
COCOA NORTH g% % ape
' ﬁ @ "%%. Canaveral
. Cocoa DIANA SHORES %,
CREEK: (574 C‘VEIC\IRAL@%‘E
CATALINA Ald
ISLE ESTATES A
e S190K TN THE SEA
Cocoa West G20)
COCOA VILLAGE Lori W“SOH
55} Park

Rotary Park @

Merritt Island

@ COCOA 1SLES
519 S

o L1}

lt\(“a“%Ver

TIMBERS WEST . T ; .
Rockledge Merritt Island ~ commiticial Cgocoa Bez
;helterQ CENTET
! Banana River
Space Coast Iceplex Aquatic
g CHELSEA PARK Preserve (a5, | =
. : Banana River  sNuG HARBOR
Go gle G - o B a I Enraree
N €0rgIan Keyhoard shortcuss Map data 2024 Google Terms  Report a map error

60



61



62



ITT ISLAND
CITVEOSVEGT GTIC e

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting
September 26, 2024

ITEM V.A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/ Old Business

PROJECT: Transit Stop Improvements

Requested Action: Presentation on Locations and Equipment Options for Transit Stop
Expenditures

Summary Explanation & Background:

At the August 22, 2024, MIRA Board Meeting, the Board approved expending $20,000 of the
$50,000 in the FY 24 budget for transit stop seating improvements, subject to approval of the
locations. Space Coast Area Transit (SCAT) preliminarily recommended 16 locations on 520 and
North Courtenay Parkway that have high ridership and would benefit from some seating
opportunities for riders.

Space Coast Area Transit has recommended purchasing the Simme-Seat, a company out of
Oregon, to provide the new seats. A double seat with a center pole or a divider cost about $1000
per unit: one of the requirements for installing a new seat is access to at least a 5-foot-wide
sidewalk in the appropriate location. The beauty of the Simme-seat is there is no need for any
permits, engineering, or even approval of the adjoining properties because it all takes place in the
right of way. Of the 16 sites provided by SCAT, 4 of them do not have access to a 5-foot sidewalk in
the proper location.

The semi-seats have a built-in divider between the two seats, and it is possible to install an
approximate 8-foot pole, which could hold bus times or other information, and a solar light
through another vendor. Most bus locations are in lighted areas, so it needs to be determined
how many solar lights would be required, but we could investigate that. Also, it’s probably not
feasible to entertain covered seating because it would involve full-on engineering, permitting, etc.

Fiscal Impact: $20,000 - $50,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Documentation




Space Coast Area Transit Page 1 of 1

Home Naw Maws £n Espanol

7= = - e e s = —u — Ty —

Jus lrip Pia ulr. 14 f 2 Schedules&Maps Speclallzed Sevices

ROUTE 3 ~ MERRITT ISLAND i

Al scheduled times arae approximate and depend on traffic and other cenditlons. To view the corresponding schedule for each bus stop, click
the bus-stop number, and the schedule will appear diractly under the map key at the top and also above the map koy at the bottom.

CLICK HERE FOR PRINTABLE VERSION

t\_u

! =y | @
STARTING REFERENCE ROUTE BUS STOP TRANSFER 05
POINT ROADS DIRECTION NUMBER POINT HOSPITAL SHOPPING AIRPORT LIBRARY COLLEGE
SR 528
FLORIDA BLVD, -,
y = il !
| >
=
4
o
o
| =
w
&
5 MUSTANG WAY
o
(8
=
SKYLARK AVE.
5] = 5 F
2 /&
2 /3
tg’
s )
o 8
& & g
&) | &
| -
| <
| z
MERRITT AVE. i ‘zt
i <
| o
r"'f-_ = SR 520 i | :‘Fﬂ SR 520 =
e = if -, L ) |
I];-'—:l %m | (/\\\, % "$I
=g o= |
S .
> — 76
6 | FORTENBERRY ROD. o=
o o
STARTING REFERENCE ROUTE BUSSTOP TRANSFEFI
POINT ROADS DIRECTION NUMBER POINT HOSPITAL SHOPPING AIRPORT LIBRARY COLLEGE

http://www .ridescat.com/maps/english/R03/index.php?id=00 9/17/2009

64



65



# @ 5
5-6 ffﬁ? | T"O C’J_B Potenl::l Sh::lle: la:alluns 3
L9 err HED
K/Z’Zém };‘ Priority [Location Ridership Current Shelter Notes r
2 1 |Sr520/S Courtenay Pkwy Southside 1609 / Denny's 575
e 2 |Sr 520/ N Tropical Trail @ 7-11 713 Bench ~ . 711 ;5
2 |_3 |Sr520/S Tropical Trail/ RoSE st 578 Westside Cars | 'S s Ot Lk
7 4 [N Courtenay Pkwy/ Crockett Blvd (SW Corner) 235 Benchzith ) U1 GHE g swW
> s |sr520/S Grovest s side 657 Bench Church el
5}/ 6 |Sr 520/ N Courtenay Pkwy Northside @ Dennys (0P il LE 1182 Bench -~ [TLANE Podomef) S/
7 N Courtenay Pkwy/ Diana Blvd (SE Corner} 179 | Bench Goodwill ] }\J—S SuJ
2.[" & |5r520/ N Grove St (NE Corner) 465 | |, Popeyes ST
/ 3 |N Courtenay Pkwy @ McDonalds 190 | Bench -]  MEMUILDS s :(gc;)
2 10 |Sr 520/ N. Banana River Dr (NW Corner) 386 5 b ;
77|21 [Sr520 @ Office Depot 319 /. {
/ 12 |Sr 520/ S Banana River Dr (SE Corner}) 172 v
/| 13 |sr520Between N River Dr (SW Corner) 201
e 14 |Skylark Ave @ Courtenay Palms 323
/[ 15 |sr5208 Milford Point (NW Corner) 170
Z | 6 [srs0@ Jimmy Vickers Car Dealer 167

- /
A, W SoACE N BRICES hads HELP |

66



L9T Jajea Je) sIIIA Awwir @ 0gS IS| 9T

youag 0T (48U10D) MN) JUIOd PIOYIN USDMIBG 0TS IS| ST

€€ swied Aeusanno) @ aAy YlelAys| v

doejjuog youag 10¢ (49u10D AAS) 4@ JoA1Y euBURYG N UMDY 0TS IS €1

1L Youag [4A" (49u40D 3S) 4Q JoAlY eUBUEY S /0TS S| T

Youag 6T¢ jodaQ 210 @ 0¢SIS| 11T

yauag 98¢ (412U10D MN) 4@ JoAIY eUBUEG "N /02S S| o1

youag 061 Spleuo@IIN @ Amid Aeusauno) N 6

soAadogd SO (49U10D IN) 1S 2A0ID N /0TS 4S 8

[[IMpOOD youag 6.1 (4ou10D 3S) pajg euelq /Amdd Aeuanino) N L

youag 7811 sAuua@ @ 9ap!SYMON Amyd Aeuaninod N /02S 4S 9

Yyainyo youoag LS9 9pIS S 1S dA0UD S /0TSIS S

youag v (43ui0D MS) pAIg 1193204) /AMdd Aeusuno) N v

Slej 9pIsisaM 8.8 1S 350y /|iled | |eaidoi) S /0TS IS €

1T-L youag eTL 11-,L © |leJ] |edidod | N /02S IS [4

s,Auuaqg 6091 apIsyinos Amyd Aeusuinod s /ozs S| T
S910N 13}9ySs ud.in) diysiapiy uolyeso|Ayuonid

puejs| 11N

suolles’oq 4a93|9ys |enualod

67



68

JOAIO : 2
Sepul| sk S
— punoqisa punaogisez
6T9 98ed
"usts do3s shq e PpY :SUOIEPUBWILOIAY
- - —
|lelay :siojesauan diayg
=t
$U0123UUODD B)qISSIIdY (sayui) quny woyy 3dueisig
t03u| NeyI33YMm ‘uonIpuoY 183jaYs ON :43343ys
_ 1a2epns dwey qiny :adojs dwey qin)
:dwey qn) je volisuel] yioows onN :dwey qund
:Buiusep aiqewasaq |, b2 ‘YIPIM (R4 2|qea3ag
‘uonlpuo) Julusepn ajqedaag ‘Buiuiep 3gqelda3aqg _
emssos) pardazold DI :f|BMSSQUD pariel 0104 |ejuala|ddng punogynog punogyuoN

8 (303} yipim yjemapis

ON :UoiIBA3(3 ul a3uey) ST S3A  1UOIII2UUO) YIeMIPIS
Si3liieq ON :S13)ieg yigg

UoI3INIISqQo O :SUORINIISqO v'Rg

20 (%) adojs ssou) 10 (%) ado|g Suluuny

S13342p ON :uonipuo) v'zg

S\ i3)BS v'gg YL 5|

919J2U0) is|eMSIe ¥IRY

‘eale yigg e susaaaad jeypn

S3A "edie yiRg e 313y} 5)

:3)qIssanay w_:vw__uwﬁ .

TUORINIISGO UedYsed ) 13]qIss@3ay ueaysed|
Y/N uoponnsqQo ysuaq ¥/N i@]qissady ouag
BUON S3UUBWY

Juasasd 10U ugis :ageulig

:A|33as103 pajunowy usis 9-43dAl :3ydisy/adA) qun)

00T‘Z$ 1soD |B10L QL€ Hjuey
.diysapry 0T 3502 T- :Jeuoneradg € Arajes S Aujiqissaaoy :Suuoas

uedwos Jou ugis  :sainlesy jueydwod-uop |

LT :[e30]

[=]

0 iuny iad diyssapry 29erany

BUON Spuezey
132215 JO  1uondasIBIUf 03 UoRes|ay
SUB| NIYI-[IABIL B U] :UO|3RIOT Sng

uSIS M3N ISWD3| X4 ¥AND |
(g4n3 pasies e yum 323115 2y 03 Jusoepe) A[BMBPIS 341 ug ‘uopeso doig _P punoqise3 uop3sla oN sueydwos vay S3A 14 HIND _

- l :-.liif. e e e M I

TR 96669°08- :2pnysuoy LISSE'8T rapnipze) XXV IL 78 AMMd AYNILYNOD HLNOS :uopzeso] PO8ST :ql .




Latitude: 28.362264

-80 700085

g

Longitude:

Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent to the street with a raised curb)

Bus Location:
Releation to Intersection:

Hazards None

I a travel-thru lane

At street, on nearside of intersection

1D: 11017 Location: COURTENAY PKWY & TENNESSEE AVE
[ Quick Fix: No ADA Compliant: No Direction: Northbound
Quick Fix [tems:
| Non-Compliant Features: Boarding and alighting area not compliant
Average Ridership per Run: 1
Scoring: Accessibility: 4 Safety 7 Operational: 2 Cost: -20 Rideship: 4 Tatal: -
| Rank: 783 Total Cost: 515,700

Southbound

|
|
§
h

Eastbound

Westbound

Ciast

Supplemental Photo

Curb Type/Height: Type F-6

Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Amenities: Bus Schedule
N/A

Trashcan Accessible:

Bench Accessible:

Schedule Accessible: Yes

Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Bench Obstruction: N/A

Trashcan Obstruction:

Is there a BRA area: No
What prevents a B&A area:
B&A Materials: Concrete
Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: No defects
Running Slope (%): 0.3
B&A Obstructions:
B&A Barriers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection: Yes
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

No obstruction

Cross Slape (%): 5.5

1/4" Change in Elevation: No

Marked Crosswalk; Ao
Detectable Warning: Yes
Detectable Full Width: Yes
Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning Condition: Excellent
24" Detectable Warning:  Yes

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No
Distance from Curb (inches):

Shelter Condition:

Wheelchair Into:
Accessible Cannection:

Trip Generators: Government, Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the stop 90' south. Resurface the B&A area to have a cross slope

<=2%.

Tindale
iz Qliver

69



JNO
sfepuny

‘sdwel guna Aqesu syl 0] s8ululem 3|qe1dalep ppy isuonepuaLIWoIay

Jie19Y ‘|enluapIsay ‘lelalawWWo) /a3ly0 ‘qeyay/|eolpay :siojesauac duy

-UoRPRUUDY 3|qQI55320Y (sayaw) q4n) wouiy asueysig

TO3Uf NEYDIIYA 1uonIpUO) 18} 3Ys oN uyeys
S84 :3IBHNS dwey qin) 53, :adoys dwey qin)

S3A :dwey qin) 1e uopsuel) Yjoows sa) ‘dwey qin)
Bululem ajqeiateq vz ‘WPIM N4 3jqelsiag

‘uompuo) 3uiuiepn ajqe3rayaq Oon  tBupuaep s|gepalag

ON  {emssol) paidaiold SBA HEMSSOLD paxien

S :(3@31) yIpIM djemapls

ON :uoReas)3 ul aduey) /T SBA :UORIBUUOY Y|EMBPIS
slallteq op :sialleq v'eg

UORINIISJO ON ISUORINNSGO V'Ea

80 (%) adojs sso1y L0 (%) adojs Suiuuny

S178J2p ON :UOItpUO) ¥iRY

SSA i9jes g Syl s|

91312U0) :5[ELPIRW VB

‘eaJe yg e sjuanaisd jJeypy

SOA (EJIE yRg B 3I3Y) S|

S\ B|qIsseIIY INpayds

$u01INIISqO uesyses 19]q|S5920y uesysel|

V/N uondnuisqo iyduag V/N 13]qIss800y Louayg
3|NPaYIs sNg  :saljuawy

(232 ‘|leuonsalip ouye1y) sugls JaYlo Yym pateys 1sod/s|od uQ :e8eusdjs
S3A :A]129110) pajunop usjs 9-4 3dAL ydjaH/adAL gn)

70

15e:)
=L

punoqisey

punaqiynos punoqyuion

BUON spJlezey

UON1IB5I83Ul O BPISIEAU UO “138.11S 1Y 1UOI3I95193U] 03 UONES(SY

3UB| NIYI-|BALL B U| 1UO[}RIOT SNg

{Qn5 pasiel e ym 133435 3y} 01 juade(pe) yjemapIs ayl uQ :uopelsy doig

9E¥00L°08- :apniduo E6EL9¢€'8T apmpe

008'TS$ 150D [E10]  pE Hjuey

11509 £ :Jeuopesado 5 Ajajeg 01 :Anqisseadoy :Suiiods [

T :uny Jad diysiapiy adessny

sBulLIBAA 2]qRI1DR18Q  tsainiead Jueldwo)-uopn |
iSwiay) X4 YHnD
ON ‘ueydwo) yvay ON NI y2InD

SITOAD FHNLINIAAY 8 AINLYNOD :uoneao] vTOTT :al |




»mE_Oa._
Sepull

T 210U 935 BIIE Y199 |IA3|
pue pasies B 31Bald 01 gInd g PAsIed B ylm ge|S 8X G |9A3| B dAedal pue
23J8 yizg BunlsIxa ay) 1e Juawaned 3yl IrowIg Isam 06 d01S JUI SA0IA SUCREPUIWWOIDY

11B19Y |B1IUBPISSY ‘[BIDISWIIOD/IDIPC siojesauan dis)

1UoRI3UUD) 3|qI553I0Y

101U} JreY2|IBYM 1uonIpuo) 4332Ys

:(ssydut) quny wouy ssueysiq |
ON :133|2y§

524 :82eHng duiey gan) sop :ado|s dwey qum)

53 dwey qin) 3e uoKIsues] yyoows saA .dwey gin)
YPIM |Ind 31qe33331=a
S3A Buiuiepn 3|qe1raiaq

S3A 1)|EMSS0ID payien

sap  Buluiepn a|geaq v

:uonipuo) Suluiepy 3|1Geratag

7N
1U3)|190%3

S2A  )|EMSS0.D paldajold

S (3924} urpIMm Hiemaprs

OGN :uoneAl|3 ul asueyd  p/T S3A  1UORIBUUD) Hjemapls
s13llieq ON isiajlleg ygg
1SUOIINIISAO V'RE
1°0 :(%) o2dojs Sujuuny

GqJn2 pasies oN .UDJIIPUO) Y73E
SOA .24BS Y'3d BY3 S|

91910U0) “s|ela1eN Y'Rg
:Ea4e \yigg € sjuanaad jeypp

L0]32N415¢0 ON
8T (%) adojs ssory

524 1BAJE RH © 3IFY) 5]

13|qIE5302Y B|npayds
1U0(IINISYQ URIYSEL )
v/N

19]qI55930y UEIYSEI]

1Uo3aNISqO Yauag Y/N  13(qissacay Yyauag

SUON :SBIUBWY
3sod udls dois sng pJepueis :adeusis

S3A :ApsaIod paiunoy udis -Aluo 1annn ydaH/adAL qand

3UON splezeH
UO[139513]Ul JC 2PISIeal UC 1931151V (UOI3IDSI3IU| 03 UOES|3Y
2UE| NIY)-|IARIL E U| 1UOIRIOT SNg

(qand pasiel e yum 393138 ay3 03 JuadelpE) 3[BM3PIS 241 U uoiieIoT dorg

€47 38ed

030yd |[euswa(ddng

71

SP=D
edS

punoqisam punogyse3

EERI ap

punoqgisapy,  uoipdang

LT Huey |
v :Agissaddy :8ullods

006°2$ 350D |e10)
6 Ayojes
vT

:diysapiy 0 1350y € :levoneiadp

:uny Jad diyssepry afesany
gin) pasiey oN ‘Jueldwod Jou ease 3uiydije pue Suipleog :sauniea4 jueldwiol-uoN
1SWRY| X4 §2IND

oN :ueldwo) yay ON :Xtd }IIND

aEn T8T669°08- ‘apnusduol] T8269E '8¢ :apmne]

3SNOH YONVIA 8 IAY ANVTHIIY ‘uoljedoy

£Z0TT :al




__ ID: 15803 Location: COURTENAY PALMS APARTMENTS & COURTENAY PKWY Latitude: 28370318 Longitude: -80.700165 Map ]
_ Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction'  Northbound Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent to the street with a raised curb)
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench Bus Location: In a travel-thru [ane
Non-Compliant Features: Bench not accessible Releation to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection
Hazards None
Average Ridership per Run; 0
Scoring: Accessibility; 11 Safety 8 Operational: 5 Cost: 5 Rideship: 0 Total: 29 Curb Type/Height: Type F-6 Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes
Rank: 131 Total Cost: $4,900 Signage: Standard bus stop sign post
Amenities: Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
Bench Accessible: o Bench Obstruction: No
Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:
_ Schedule Accessible: Yes
R Is there a B&A area: Yes
o w_ K.”IJ What prevents a B&A area:
i Y i B&A Materials: Concrete
Is the B&A Safe: Yes
B&A Condition: No defects
Running Slope (%): 1.4 Cross Slope (%): 0.3
B&A Obstructions: No obstruction
B&A Barriers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection: VYes 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5
Southbound Supplemental Photo Marked Crosswalk: Yes Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning: Mo Detectable Warning Condition:
Detectable Full Width: 24" Detectable Warning:
Curb Ramp: Yes Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
_ Curb Ramp Slope: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes
) ]
Shelter: No Shelter Condition: Wheelchair Into:
Distance fram Curb {inches): Accessible Connection:
__ Trip Generators. Residential, Retail
Recommendations: Move the bus stop 280 south. Move the pole with the bus schedule
adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible. Make sure the bus stop
sign is located on the far side of the B&A area. See note 5 Move the
bench so that it is flush with the edge of the sidewalk and outside of the
B&A area.

Eastbound

Page 618

Tindale
iz Oliver

72



|

Longitude:

_ ID: 10939 Location: SKYLARK AVE & COURTENAY PALMS Latitude: 28,371432 -80.699141 Map |
Quick Fix: No ADA Compliant: No Direction: Eastbound _ Stop Location: On the sidewalk (with no curb)
Quick Fix items: Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane |
Non-Compliant Features: Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not accessible, No Raised Curb Releation to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection
Hazards None
Average Ridership per Run: 3 e = ——
Scoring: Accessibility: 2 Safety 6 Operational: 4 Cost: O Rideship: 12 Total: 24 Curb Type/Height: Gutter only- sign Mounted Correctly: Yes
Rank: 224 Total Cost: $6,400 Signage: Standerd bus stop sign post

Northbound Southbound Supplemental Photo

e

Page 247

Bus Schedule
N/A
Trashcan Accessible:

Amenities:
Bench Accessible:

Schedule Accessible: No

Bench Obstruction: N/A

Trashcan Obstruction:

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:
B&A Materials: Partiaily Paved
Is the B&A Safe. Yes

Running Slope (%): 0.1
B&A Obstructiens: No obstruction
B&A Barrlers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection. No
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

Cross Slope (%): 0.1

1/4" Change in Elevation: No

Marked Crosswalk: No
Detectable Warning: No
Detectable Full Width.
Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning Condition:

24" Detectable Warning:

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No
Distance from Curb (inches):

Shelter Condition:

Accessible Connection:

Wheelchair Into:

Trip Generators: Residential

Recommendations:

Pave a level 5'x8' slab with a raised 6” curb for the BRA area adjacent to
the existing paved path. See note 1. Mave the bus stop sign to the far side
of the B&A area and make sure the bus schedule is accessible. See note 5.

Tindale
2 Oliver

73



<
~

ID: 11008 Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & MCDONALDS Latitude: 28.374256 Longitude: -80.700662 Map E

.| = —

Stop Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction: Northbound

Quick Fix ftems: Relocate Bench Bus Locatlon: In a no parking portion of a street lane

Non-Compliant Features: Bench obstruction, Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Detectable
Warnings, No Raised Curb

Releation to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection
Hazards None

Average Ridership per Run: 2 =

Scoring: Accessibility: -2 Safety 3 Operational: 2 Cost: O Rideship: 8 Total: 11 | Curb Type/Height: None sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Rank: 501 Total Cost: $6,100 || Signage: Standard bus stop sign post
1 = ————— e R | Amenities: Bench (3rd Party)
Bench Accessible: Ho Bench Obstruction: ves
Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:
Schedule Accessible:
= -
Is there a B&A area: Yes
What prevents a BRA area:
B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass
Is the B&A Safe: Yes
B&A Cendition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant
Running Slope (%): 0.1 Cross Slope (%): 0
B&A Obstructions. Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.)
B&A Barriers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection: Yes 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width {feet): 5
|
Southbound Marked Crosswalk: o Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning: Ao Detectable Warning Condition:
Detectable Full Width: 24" Detectable Warning:
Curb Ramp: Yes Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Slope: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes
Shelter: No Shelter Condition: Wheelchair Into: #
Distance from Curb {inches): Accessible Connection: II_

| Trip Generators: Medical/Rehab, Office/Commercial, Retail

rmnoaam:am:o:m" Pave a level 5'x8' slab with a raised 6” curb for the BA area. See note 1.
Move the bench so that it is flush with the edge of the sidewalk and outside
of the B&A area. Add detectable warnings to the nearby curb ramps.

Page 254

NRALT A% /30 fAE Tindale
i 1 /30 Z0liver

Easthound Westbound




]

| ID: 10998 Location: COURTENAY PKWY & COUNTRY CLUB APTS

Latitude: 28.377716 Longitude' -80 70223

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction:
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench

Non-Compliant Features: Bench obstruction, Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not

accessible, No Raised Curb
Average Ridership per Run: 0
lity: -2

Scoring: Accessil Cost: -5

Rank: 766

Safety 3 Operational: 2 Rideship: 0

Total Cost: $8,100

Southbound

|
11

Southbound

Page 246

Eastbound Westbound

ﬁmnou Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway
Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane
Releation to Intersection: At street, on nearside of intersection

Hazards None

Curb Type/Height:
Sighage: Standard bus stop sign post

Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
Mo
Trashecan Accessible:

None Sign Mounted Correctly:
Amenities:

Bench Accessible: Bench Obstruction: Ves

Trashcan Obstruction:

Schedule Accessible: o

Is there a B&A area: Yes
What prevents a B&A area:
B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass
Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant
Running Slope {%): 0.1 Cross Slope {%): = 3
B&A Obstructions: Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.)
B&A Barriers: No barriers
No

Sidewalk Connection 1/4" Change in Elevation: No

_ Sidewalk Width {feet}. 5

| Marked Crosswalk: 7o

Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Mo Detectable Warning Con
Detectable Full Width: 24" Detectable Warning

Curb Ramp. Yes

Detectable Warning:

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
Distance from Curb (inches):

Wheelchair Into:
Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the stop 590" north. Pave a level 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb for
the B&A area. See note 1 Move the pole with the bus schedule adjacent to
the pavement to make 1t accessible,

Move the bench so that it is flush with the edge of the sidewalk and outside
of the B&A aiea

Tindale
i Qliver



76

D: 10397 Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & DIANA BLVD Latitude: 28.384536 Longitude: -80,702662 Map
Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction: Northbound Stop Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane
Non-Compliant Features: Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not accessible, No Raised Releation to Intersection: At street, on nearside of intersection
Curb

Hazards None
Average Ridership per Run: 0 = =

Scoring: Accessibility: 2 Safety 6 Operational: 3 Cost: -5 Rideship: 0 Total: 6 Curb Type/Helght: None Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes
Rank: 629 Total Cost: $8,600 . || Stgnage: Standard bus stop sign post _
e - Amenlties: Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
'S Bench Accessible: o Bench Obstruction No
Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:

Schedule Accessible: e

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area

B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass

Is the BRA Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

Running Slope {%): 0.2 Cross Slope (%) ©.5

B&A Obstructions: No obstruction

B&A Barriers: Located in drainage ditch

Sidewalk Connection: No 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

m_.iu_m_.:m:»m_ Photo Marked Crosswalk: Yes Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning: Yes Detectable Warning Condition: Good
Detectable Full Width: Yes 24" Detectable Warning: Yes
Curb Ramp: Yes Smooth Transitich at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Slope: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes
| == — T —
Shelter: No Shelter Condition: Wheelchair Into:
Distance from Curb (inches): Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Retail

Recommendations: Move the stop 340" narth. Pave a level 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb for
the B&A area See note 1. Add a 13’ path to connect the B&A to the
existing sidewalk Move the bench so that it is flush with the edge of the
sidewalk and outside of the B&A area, Move the pole with the bus
schedule adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible.

Page 245

Eastbound Westbhound

" Tindale
! r el Hf e £ Oliver
A% o TR AT




| Ip: 11008

Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & CROCKETT BLVD

Latitude: 28.384326 Longitude: -80.702883

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No

Quick Fix 1tems: Relocate Bench

Non-Compliant Features:
accessible, No Raised Curb

Average Ridership per Run: 0

Scoring: Accessibility: 0 Safety 6

Rank: 559  Total Cost: $7,700

Operational: 3

Cost:

Bench obstruction, Bench not accessible, Boarding and a

0

Direction: Southbound

hting area not compliant, Schedule not

Rideship: © Total: 9

Northbound

: || e ISR T

Southbound

Westbound

T gz
Supplemental Photo

Page 252

- —

Stop Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway
Bus Location: In a right turn only lane
Releatlon to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection

Hazards None

Curb Type/Height:

Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
No

le:

None Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Amenities:

Bench Accessible: Bench Obstruction: Ves

Trashcan Accessil Trashcan Obstruction:

Schedule Accessible: o

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Partiaily Paved

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant
Running Slope {%): 0.3
B&A Obstructions: Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.}
B&A Barriers:
Sidewalk Connection: Yes
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

Craoss Slope (%): 0.5

No barriers
1/4" Change in Elevation: No

Marked Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning:
Detectable Full Width:
Curb Ramp: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes
Yes Detectable Warning Condition:
24" Detectable Warning:
Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp; Yes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Excellent
Yes Yes

Curb Ramp Slope. Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
Distance from Curb (inches):

Wheelchair Into:

Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Medical/Rehab, Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the bus stop ~170' north. Remove the pavement at the existing B&A
area and repave a level 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb to create a raised

and level B&A area. See note 1. Move the bench so that it is flush with the
edge of the sidewalk and outside of the B&A area. Move the pole with the

bus schedule adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible.

Tindale
2 Oliver

77



A ID: 11003

Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & CENTRE OF MERRITT PUBLIX

Latitude: 28.385052 Longitude: -80.701906

5

Quick Fix: Yes
Quick Fix Items: New Sign

ADA Compliant: No

Non-Compllant Features: Sign not compliant

_ Average Ridership per Run: 0

| Scorlng: Accessibility: 8
| Rank: 228

Safety 5
Total Cost: 52,100

Operational: 0 Cost: 10

Rideship:

Direction: Northbound

o] Total: 23

Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent to the street with a raised curh)
Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane

Releation to Intersection:  Off street

Hazards None

Eastbound

e

AL A P EALTT

Westbound

Curb Type/Height: Type F-6
Signage: Sign not present
Amenities: Bike Rack
Bench Accessible: N/A
Trashcan Accessible:

Sign Mounted Correctly:

Bench Obstruction: N/A
Trashcan Obstruction:
Schedule Accessible:

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Concrete

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

BR&A Condition: No defects
Running Slope (%): 0.1

B8A Obstructions: No cbstruction
BRA Barriers: No barriers

Cross Slope (%): 1.3

Sidewalk Connection: Yes
Sidewalk Width (feet): 9

1/4" Change in Elevation: No

gy s feu g
I 55

Page 249

[

Marked Crosswalk: Yes Protected Crosswalk: No
Detectable Warning: o

Detectable Full Width:

Detectable Warning Condition:

24" Detectable Warning:

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
Distance fram Curb {inches):

Wheelchair Into:
Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendatlons: Add a bus stop sign.

Tindale
% Oliver

78



79



SN
SlepuilL

‘%7=>J0 mQO_m SS042 B 3ARY 0] BaJe yYRg 2yl 93BUNSIY Suoljepusawiuoday

JIEYRY ‘[BIIUSPISTY ‘[e1JaWW0]/3010 :sJo1essuayg dug |

:{saydul) gun) wouy adueisiq _
ON :333us

:U01322UL0) 3|qISSIIIY
:03U] JIBYIIIIYM IUOLHPUO) JBYIYS

— —

s9A :92epns dwey qin) saj adojs dwey gqin)
soA :dwey g4n)
‘YIPIM Ind 3]qe1381eg

S9A :Buiuiepn 9)qerdIsiag

594 :dwey qun) e uoIsuel} Yloows
saA :Suluiepn 3|qe1INnaq ., ve
:uopuo) Suiuiepy syqeldiag

EETN
1U3([99%3
SOA  D|EMSSO0I) Pa1I}0Id S3A D|EMSSOI) PR |

S :(3234) yIpt Yjemapis
S3A :1UOI1IBUUO) H|emapIS
:siaLueq vgg
uonoNJisqo ON :suon2aNIISqO ved

T'T (%) adojs Butuuny
5108J2p ON :uonIpuo) v'9d
SOA :9)eS v'8g 3yl S|
91210U0) :S|ElIBIBIN V34
:EBJE iR E syuanaid 1eym

ON :uoneas|y ui aduey)d .v/1
sjaieq oN

57 :(%) adoys sson)

S\ ‘eale yigg e 319yl §|

S9A  I3[qISSAIY BNPaYIS
1U0IINISQO UBdYSeL | :9|qISS9I0Y UedYSEI |
¥/N :uonpnaisqQ ysuag ¥/N  :3|GISsady youag

3|npayds sng
150d ugis dois sng piepueis :a8eudis
9-4 adAL ySisH/adAL qun)

1S3UBWY

saA :A]123110) pajunoy udis

B |
QUON spJezeH |
U0I11295431U1 JO IS Jej Uo 19915 1y 1U0NISsIvU| 0) uoiled|ay _

due| Niyl-|aAel] e U] :uonelo] sng

(g4n> pasied e yum 132415 9Y3 03 Juddelpe) yjemapis syl uQ :uoiero] dois

punoqisam

997 a8ed

010yd |eluawa|ddng

009¢S :150) |e10]

£5 Djuey

g€ :|ejo] g :diysapry 0T :150) S :leuonesadQ 6 A1ojes g :Anjiqissa1oy :Sulods
Z :uny iad diysiapiy aderany
wendwod jou eale Funysije pue SuipJeog :saJnjead Jueljdwo)-uoN
'sway xi4 }2Inp
punoqgisey :uoldalQg oN :juendwo) vav ON :X1432IND _

6V/50£708- :3pnusuo] 69/9S¢°'8T spmne]

1S 3504 B 1IVYLI¥IIdOYL S 0CS S :uonedxo

0c0tT “ai



AN 7
S[epul

‘947=> 40 3dO|5 55017 B dARY 0] EBIE Yigd Y] 90B4INS3Y :SUOIIEPUIWIUOIDY |

897 93ed

|le1dy  :ss03esdudn) diuy

:03u} JIeydId3YM

1U0I32UUO) 3}qIS5INY :(saydur) gan) wouy aduelsiq
:UOIPUO) 19}9YS ON :1313yS

s9A :dwey qan) 1e uonisuel yloows s, :dwey qin)

1U3||99X3  :uoipuo) Sujusepn a|qe1rRNea

saA :avepns dwey qin) saA :adojs dwey qun) .

soA  :Buluiepm s|qelIRILq b7 S3A :YIPIM (N4 S1geIdRle

S9A Buulepn 3jqeldalsd

010yd |eluawalddng

S9A  jjemssol) palrslold SIA 1)|BMSS0ID P BIAI

S :(3934) yIpIw djemapls
ON :uoneaaj3 ui 3adueyd /T SIA  1U01123UUO) Yjemapls
S191iieq ON :Siduleq yRg
uoaNIISqo ON :SUoANISqO Ve
7’0 :(%) adojs Suruuny

S10948P ON :uoIIpUO) Y¥'8d

S3A 19)eS yigg 2yl |

91245U0) :s[elR1eN V'gd _

50T :(%) odojs ssou)

:EdJe g4 e sjuaaaad jeym
ON :edie y’3( B 3I3y1 S|

]
:91q1ssaY anpayds  fi

1uo11INIISqQ UedYSes] 19|qISSaIIY UBIYSes |
ON :uondNIISqQ Yyouag S9A  19]qISsal0Y |auag
|
(Auegd pig) youag :salURdWY

1sod u8is dois sng piepueis :a8eufis _

S9A :Ap23110) pIWNOA udis 9-4 2dAL :ySiaH/adAL qun) [ 0 :e01 g :diysapry

BUON spJezey
UOI1935131U1 JO 3PIS S} UO “123J1S IV :UOIID3SIIIU| 01 UOIIe3|oY
aUE| NIY}-[3ABJ} B U| 1UOIIRIOT] Sng

{g4n2 pasies e yum 19311s Y1 01 Juadelpe) yemapis oyl uQ :uoneloq dois pUNOgISaAY  :uomIANg

€I¥S0L08- :apnusuo] 65045€°8C 3pniie]

1SP=D)
3. 7S

punogisam punoqise3

81

0 1s0) S :leuonesado 6 Ayojes

\

|

punoqyinos punoqyuoN

00v9$ :3s0) |el0L €T Hjuey
g :Aupqissaady :8un0S |
¢ :uny Jad diysiapry aSesany

jueldwod jou eaJse Sujydije pue Suipieog :sainlead Juelidwo)-uop |
SWaN Xi4 }IND |

ON :uefdwo) yay ON 142D |

TVYLTYIIdOYL N 8 0TS ¥S :uoledio 01T tal



AN
S|epuilL

pUNOGIS3M

JPISINO PUB 3|EMBPIS 3U1 JO 38P3 3YJ YUM YSN}y S| M 1ey) 05

| /G 28ed

‘e3UE Y139 BY) JO _
4ouaq 3yl A0 SUO[IEPUSIWIOIDY

j1e3ay  :si0}essuan disg

1U0I}IBUUO) 3|qISSIIY
103U} JIeYd1a3YM

:uonIpuod 1AYAYS

:(sayour) gan) wouy 3duelsiq
ON :18)3ys

s9A :92epns dwey qin)
594 :dwey qIn) e uoinsues] Ylroows

sap  :8utusepn 3jgeydaleq ,be
pooo  :uonipuo) Suluiep 34qerrdiag

S3A  D{|EMSS01) paldvlodd

so) :adojs dwey qin)
saA :dwey qin)

YIpIM (N4 3)qesiaa

S3A :Suiuiepn afqe1rs1sqg

sop ¢

punogyloN

punogqynos

SSA D|eMSS0L) pNIBIN

— = ; =

ON :uoneaajz ui afueyy ,v/T

€0 (%) adojs sso1)

:(1934) YIPIW Hjemapis
1U01123UU0) ) |EMIPIS

§
SOA

sialeq op :siaLueg yigd
uol1dMNIISqo ON :SUOINNISqO V'3E . i st . ;
10 (%) 2dojs Suiuuny r

uo) v'gd _
9jes v'3d 3yl s|
912J2U0) :S|eldIeN V'R
1eale 13g e squanald zeym
SDA :eJE yYigg B SI9Y1 §| TS

510342p ON :u

SO\ 1

UOIIINIISGO UBdYSRI|

ON :uolNIIsSqQO Yduadg

a|npayds sng

saA :Aj123140) pajunop usis

SaA  191qISS?NY BNPIYIS

19]qISS9I0Y uUedYse|

ON
Aued pig) youag :saniuawy |

:9]qISSaNY yousg

1

1s0d uis dois snq pJepueis :a8eusis _

‘1s0) [eyol

008°T$ 0z juey

(gdno pasies e yum 192415 9yl 01 JUdde(pe) 3|emap|s ayl uQ :

UO[1035121Ut JO SPIS JB) UO ‘499115 Iy

T/1204°08- :epnnduoy

9-4 3dAL :ySieH/adAL qun) | ¥S 1je10L T :diysapry ST :1s0) S :jeuonesadg 6 A1ayes €T :AupqIsseddy :Fuuods
|

= —————— € :uny Jad diysiapry adesany
SUON spiezeH |

:U0nISsIRU] 01 uone3|BY 3|qIssa00e 10U Youag  :sauniead juendwo)-uoN

aue| nyl-|aneI] B U[ UOnedOT SNg | SRR EESIRSED

uoneso] dois [ punogise3 :uomoalig oN :juendwo) yay SOA XI4HIAND |
—_ _ .-. — e ————— — — — P — — S S S — S
3QIS S LS JA0YD S B 0TSYS :uoneio] TT0TT ai

€9/9GE'8T apnmie]




JBNJO
sjepul),

SUOREPUIWWIOIZY ON :Suollepusawiolay _

=i
424nyD eIy ‘(enuspissy :si01eiduao duy |
|

:U0I1I3UUOD) I|QISSINY :(sayout) gin) wouy adueisiqg _
101U] J1BY3|33YMm :uoI13IpUD) J9YIYS ON :49)3ys _
$SA 2oepns dwey qin) so) :adojs dwey qin) _
sa\ :dwey g4n) 1e uolIsuel] yioows sa, :dwey qsn)
oA  :Buluiepn 9jqe1d99q , v SIA  UIPIM |jnd 2|qr13931ad _
W9[[33%3  uoiipuo) Sutuiepy d|qerDlsg saA  :Sulurepn ejqeidelag

ON :)j[EMSSOJ) pPal1dalold S D||EMSSOI) PDUBIAl |

s :(299)) YIPIM HEMBPIS |

ON :uoneas|3 uiasuey) ,v/1 S3A  1UOIIIBUUOD) Y|EMIPIS
Slaldieq oN :siauueg yRd

uolonJglsqo oN :suondnnsqQp veg

0 (%) adojls ssou) €0 :(%) adojs Suiuuny

$19842p ON :UOIIPUO) VY

S9A :3JeS y'g 9yl s|

2913J0U0)) :S|eldleAl VRe _

‘eaJe yigg e syuanaid jeymn

S2A :B3le yiggd e 843Y] S|

:3[q1SS3IY JNPIYIS

:UonINIISqO Uedysea| :9[qISSaIIY uedYses|
¥/N :uonanisqQ ysuag V/N :9]|qIssa2dy youag
BUON :§ awy

1s0d udis dois snq piepue)s :afeudis
S3A :A|1P8u0) paiunop usis 9-4 adA1L :ySieH/adAL gin)

suoN spisezey |
UOIII95I8]UI JO BPIS JBY UD ‘}3341S IV 1UOIIIISIIU| 01 UORED|DY |
3UE| NJYI-|3AEJ] B U] :UOlIeIOT Shg |
{g4no pastes e yum 19a11s 8yl 01 JUBIB[pE) YlEMBPIS BYL UQ :uoneIo] dois

€V9T0L'08- :apnuduo CTT/SE°8C @pnyie]

TG @3ed

83

— e i st U

W - -
o i

punoqyioN

TET :leloL

pUNOQISIAA  tuoidRNA

soA tuejdwo) vay

0$ ‘1507 [e10] 9 juey |
Z1 :Augissay :Sunodg

:uny 13d diysiapty 23esany

:saJn1ead jueljduwo)-uoN
1SWRY Xi4 N |
ON :X142IND |

1S JACUYD N B 0TS YS :uoneso

S00TT Al |



FBANO ™
S[epLil]

punoqisam

65¢ 98ed

~do3s SNQ 2y} 1O} SUOEPUIWILLOI3L O :Suoljepuawiioday

|lesy  :sio01etauadn duy

:UOIBUUOD) 3|qISSINY :(saysur} gun) wody 3suersia

:03U] JIEYIRBYM 1uoINPUO) 19)3YS ON :431j3YyS
s9A :32euns dwey qin) sa) :adojs dwey gin)
saA :dwiey gnd 18 UoILSUeJ ] Y100WS s :dwey qin)
| sap  :Suluiepm 9|qee1ag b SSA IYIPIM (N4 2]qe1933a
| pooy  :uopuol Sulusem 3|qe1919a sap  :Suiusepn 9|qe1d93ag
S3A  DJ|EMSSOL) PR133104d ON D||EMSSOI) PAIBIN oloyd |eauswajddng punoqyuoN

LT :(399)) YIPIAR SiEMaPIS |
[ ON :uoneaaj3 utasuey) /T SSA  :UOIIIBUUOD H|EM3IPIS

| siaLueq oN :siallleg ygg
_ U0119n135q0 ON :SU0IPNNSYO V'8 7
| 2T (%) @dojs ssou) 20 (%) ado|s Suiuuny
§109J2p ON :u uo) vrd
SO\ 3JES V89 Y1 S|
21340U0) :S|EUBIRIN V99
| :eaJe yigg B squaaald 1eym |

S2A 1BDJE 'Rg B 313Y) 5|

SSA 13|qISSINY JNPayIs

1UONDNIISqO UedYSes| 13)q1S5330y URIYSRI]

ON :uoIINASqQ Yduag SSA  :3|qISS3I0Y yIuag

3|NPaYds sng ‘(Aled pig) Yousg :seruawy | 4 AL

1sod uSis dois sng plepueis :aSeus| T . i : . : . .
! G piepuels :adeudis _ 0$ :150) |e1o] L duey
saA :Aj3d9110) pajunon udis 9-43dAL :ySeH/adA) qun)

6¢T :[e10] g :diysapiy 00T :150) 7 :jeuonesado L Kioges 71 :Aupqissey :8unods

= = — — — Z :uny sed diysiapry sSeiany
SUON spJezeH

UOI3D3591UI JO 3PISIEdU UO 193115 1Y 1UOIIIISIAIU| 0} UOIIE3|DY :s9.mea4 juendwor)-uoy

2UB| NUY}-|3AeI] B U| :UOIIBIOT SN
[REEEEY| eyl 118207 shg :sWa3| X14 ¥ANpD |

(guno pasiel e yum 13311S Y} 0} JUIIB[PE) 3|em3pIs 3yl UQ :uoiedo] dois ON 34 321D

punogisapy  :uonaaqg saA :jue)dwo) vav

EE T14869°08- :@pnnuduo] €6T.L5¢°8C apnyie]

SANNIA / AMMd AYNILYNOD N 8 076 ¥S :uonedo] €T0T1 I _




S[EPULL,

“}|EMBPIS 3U3 Ul 3IBII Y] BOBUNSIY "%Z=> JO
ado|s s5010 e aARY 01 B3R yiRg Y} 3084INS3Y “1S9M G/ 7 dO1S SNQ BYL SAOIAl 1SUOHEPUBWIWOIAY |

[SENERIGEICIEL YT

1UOIIIBUUO) 3[qISSIIIY

:(saysui) gun) wouy dueisia

103U} JIBYIRIYM

:UOoIIpUO) 19Y3YS

ON :213ys

SOA

:20eping dwey qin)

saA :adojs dwey gun)

pooo

s9, :dwey qin) e u

1Suel] yloows

M74
‘uoipuo) Sujuiepn 3|qealaq

sap  :Suiuiepn s|qerrniag

SIA  DJJEMSSOL) P10

saA :dwey qin)

“YIpIm |Ind 31qe3ralaq
sap Juiuiepn sjqersraq _

ON :)f]EMSSOI) paYJEN

SOA

534 :uoneas|y ui asueyd /T

£t (%) adojs ssoa)

pajeson

:(1234) YIp1 Njemapis
1U0I123UL0) Y|EMmIpIS

8
SOA
sialiieq ON :sialeg ygg
uodNJ}sqo ON :suondNIISqQO v3d
€0 (%) adojs Suuuny

219p 20eLNS PaABd :UOIUpUO0) yi3d
S2A 13JBS VR4 Ayl s|

S|BURIRA VB
1BdJE g g e SJUdAId Jeym

21240U0D

S9A :edJE Y7Rg B 313y} S|

13|qIssaY ANPaYIS |

SBA
1U011INIISqO UBIYSEIL :31qISS322Y uedyses]
V/N :uondnnisqo youag V/N :31GISsa2y youag _

3npayds sng  sanuswy |

1sod u8is dois snq prepues :afeudis

soA :Aj3d2410) pajunow usis

g-4 adAL :ySieH/adAL qan)

SUON spJezeH |
UDI1225131U1 JO IPIS Jey UO ‘132U1S JY  1UOIIBSISU| 01 UONIED|DY
SUE| NJY3-|3ARIL € U] :UONBIOT SN |

(g4n2 pasies e yum 18341S Y3 03 JUBE(PE) Y[EMIPIS Yl UD :uoneIn] dols

LP895E'8C apnyie]

9£869°08- :@pnusuo]

punogisam
GG 93ed

o0104d |eiuawajddng

vl

LLE Hjuey
L Aajes Z :Aupqissedny :Sulods |

T

L1eroL

v :leuonesadQ

:diysapry 0 150D

:uny 1ad diysiapry sSesany
uelidwod jou ease Sunysije pue Suipieog  :sainjeaq jueldwo)-uoN
ISWIBY| X14 32N

ON :x14%2InD

punoqisey :uondaag ON :uendwo) yvav

AMId AYNILYNOD S8 02S dS :uonedoq

600TT Al



JONIIO)
S[epulL

-sdwel qind Agseau ay3 0] sSuluiem 2|gel1Is1ep PPY 'S 910U 995 ‘eale
V739 3Y3 4O 3p1s JeJ 3y} U0 pa1edo| sl uSis dols sng 3yl 34ns XA "3|qISSade
1 @YewW 03 Juswaned ay) 01 1uIde(pe I|NPayds sNg 3yl YUMm 3|od Byl SAO|A :SUOIIEPUBWWOIY

12J3WWO0D /2210 :sJojesauss diy

S3A
S9A 101U] Jteyd adym

sajA :22epns dwey qun)y
so :dwey qin) 1e uoisueI] Yloows

_ :Bulusepn 9jqe1da13q e

:uonipuo) Suluiepn ajgeralaq
SSA  j|EMSSOI) PR)IR104d

+8 :(sayour) qin) wouiy 3dueisiq |
SOA 1IBYIYS _

soA :adojs dwey qin)
saA :dwey qin)
*YIPIM Ind 3(qe1332Q
opN  :Sujulepn s|gerrareg
SIA DJ|EMSSOI) PDUBIA)

ON :uoneasj uiadueyd v/t

S0 :(%) adojs sso1)

ON
ON

1U01INIISGQ uedYsed
1uoIIPNIISYQO Ydouag

uej ysel| ‘s|npayds sng ‘(je1on) yousg

saA :Aj323410) pajuno udis

U011935133U1 JO IPISIEDU UO ‘193115 1Y

(gena pasies e yum 1991 3y 03 Judelpe)

S :(1934) yIp1w Niemapis

SSA  IUOIIIBUUO) Y|EMIPIS
si3lu1eq ON :sJ3LIeE V'R |
uoI12NJ1SqO ON :SUOIPNIISAQ V'3 d
+'0 :(%) @dojs Buiuuny

S10949p ON :UoRIPUO) ¥'3d

SOA :3)eS ¥'3d 3y S|

81312U0D :S|eLRIBN V'R G

:eaJe ygg e spuanasd reym

S9) B3I 7RG B BI3Y] S

ON  :3|qISS22Y JNPAYIS
S3A  13[QISS3IIY UBIYSel]
S3A  191qISSaMy youag

1s0d ugis dois snq pJepuels :afeudis
9-42dAL :ySisH/adAL qan)

SUON splezeH
1Uu011D3SI3U| 0} UOIIE|BY
3UE| NJYI-|9ALJ] B U| uOI}eIO] shg
jlemapls 8yl uQ :uones’oq dois

sausWY | |

TELEG9'08- :9pmuSuo]

S97/SE'8T apnule]

8tz 23ed

0310yd |eluawajddns

punogisapm

6€ ‘|e1ol I%

punogisafy  iuondaag

00S°2$ :s0) je1o| St djuey
8 A1ajes 1 :AupqIssaddy :Buliodsg

:diysapry

0T :3s0) ¢ :jeuonesadp

T :uny iad diysispry alesany

s3ululep 81ge1021aQ ‘3]qISS900. 10U AINPAYDS  isaunieaq Juendwo)-uoN
ISWIdY X134 )2IND
ON :XI4 3¥nD

ON :juenidwo) yay

S1071918 8 0S5 ¥S :uoiledo]

C00TT :ai



NI ™
ajepul,

| ‘sdweJ gund AgJeau ay) 0} sSuluiem 3jgeldalsp ppy
| 'S 910U 335 "B3JE Y¥I9g Y] JO IS Jey 3Y3 U0 paledo) st ugis dois snq 3yl
| 2uns ey "191[3YS BYI JO JUOLY 3y} 0} JOSO(D UED YSEJ) B1RI0|3Y '3|0iSsaooe
| 3 3ew o1 uswaaed ay) 01 Judde(pe 3INPaYIS SNQ Yl YUMm 3jod 3yl SA0|A :SUOHEPUSWIWOIBY

|le12y ‘|enJawwo) /20140 ‘qeyay/[edipay  si103esauds duy

vPT :{S3ydoul) gin) wouy sduersiq
IUOLMIpUO) JIYIYS

S3A  1UOIIIBUUODY J|QISSIIIY

S9A 101U[ JIBYDDIYM pooo S9A BYIYS

soA :adojs dwey qin)

SaA :9oeung dwey qin)
soA :dwey qmn) |
*UIPIM |ind 9]qe13319g
ON  :Buluiepn 3|qeideleg

sa) :dwey gin) e uolysuel] Yioows

M 74
puo) Sutuiepn sjge1daNag

:Buiurepn sjqe1a|neq

SBA  J|EMSSOUI) PRIIBI0I SIA Y |EMSSOL) PYEI

S :(1934) YIpIw Nemapis
SOA  1UOIIIBUUO) H[emIPIS

ON :uoneas|z uiadueyd ,v/T
si3Llleq oN :siaused yigg
UOIIdNIISYO ON :SUONNIISAO VRY |
£'T :(%) adojs Buiuuny
S$193J3p ON :u01IpUO) YRY
SIA :19JES W39 Y1 S|

2'T :(%) odo|s sso1)

87

punoqise3

punoqisam

899 23ed

010yd jejuawajddng

91910U0) :S|ELRIEI VRY
‘eale yigg e suanaad 1eym fez. == : 2
SaA ;e ygg B Auayl S| | | T lﬂ .
ON  :9|qISS9IIY BJNPIYIS
ON :U0IINNISGO UeIyse | ON  :9]QISS322Y UBdYses| _
ON :uodNIIsqQ Youag S3A  :9]qISSINY Ydoudg A
ueD Ysed] ‘3npayds sng “(jedIyo) yousg samuawy L et ML ch PR
150d ugis do1s snq pJepuels :afeusis _. S ] omw.Nm aImO|U je10L 09 U_zlmﬂj
| S9A :AjR23110) pajunoy uBis 9-4 3dAL y31sH/adAL qun) _ /€ |e10) 0 :diysspiy 0T :150) S :[euonesado 3 A1ages vT :AupqIssady :Suliods
—_— = — = ——— — 0 :uny s3d diysiopiy adesany
3UON spaezeq
UONDISIZIU] JO BPIS 18J UO ‘19315 1V :UONIISIDIL| O] UDIED|Y s3uiulem 31qe10918Q ‘3|q1ssadde 10U 3NPayds ‘Juendwiod 30U UedYse)]  :sanjead Juelduwo)-uoN
aue| nIyI-{aAes B Ul ‘uoPeIOT] SNg UED Usel| 21e00[3Y SWY X11 HIND
(g4n2 pasies e yum 130115 3Y3 03 Jus2.[PE) [EM3PIS 34T UQ U207 d0IS punogIse3 :uondang oN :uendwo yay saA 14 IND
0ER £6/€69°08- :3pnuduo 8S6395€°8¢ ™dpnuie 025 YS B TIVIA 34VYNDS LLIYYIIA :uonedol 0964C Al



A2ANO ™
s[epUl]

‘sdwed quna Aqlesu ayl 0] SSululem 3|qe1dalap ppy “JBMO| JNPIYIS |
SNQq 3y JUNOWRY "%z=> J0 3dO|S SSOII e IABY 0] EBIE \'9g Y} 9IBLINSDY :SUOIBPUIW LOITY

|1e12Y ‘[BI2IWWOD/NNO ‘Geysy/|EAPSIN S10lesaulD diil

S9A  1UOIIIBUUOY) JGISSIIIY
poOD :uoHIPUO) JBYBYS

g :(s9your) qun) woiy aduelsiqg

S9A 103U] JIBYD|IIYM S, 13)3Ys

sa4 :22epns dwey gin) soA :adojs dwey qind
s9A :dwey gin)
Ypim |jnd sjqelaslag

oN  :Suiusepn 9)gerrNinq

sa4 :dwey qin) e UoRISUEI] Yjoows
:Bulusep a)qed9l8q e
1uojlipuo) Suruiepn ajqeldanag

$S3A  j|emssod) parralold SIA DJ|EMSSOL) PIYJEIN

S :(193)) y1pim yjemap
ON :uoneasjz ui a3dueyd v/t SIA  1UOIIBUUO) YeMmBPIS |
sialileq oN :sialieg ygd
UOII2NAISHO ON :SUOIINIISGO V'8g |
50 :(%) ado|s Suiuuny
S173J3p ON :U0IPpUO) ¥RY
SBA :9)BS ¥ig 34l S|
212J0U0) :S|BLIBIRW V7Bd
:eaJe ygg e syuanaud Jeym

'S :{%) ado|s ssou)

SDA 1€ yIRg B 33y} S|

ON  :9]qISS920Y 3|Npayds
ON :uondnJIsqQ uedyses] SO 19|qISS9IIY UBIYSEIL
ON :uolanIsqQ Youag SOA
ue) ysed] ‘s|npayds sng (|enyQ) Yyouag :sauuswy

1s0d uis dois snq piepueis :aSeudis

9-4 2dAL :ySisy/edAL qun) .
|

19)qISsady Yauag

s34 :Aj199130) pajuno usis

SUON spiezeH
UOIIIDSISIUL O BPIS JBJ UO 1934151V :UOIIIBSI3IU| 0} UOHEI|SY
3UB| NIY}-[3A_I] B U| :UOIIEIOT Shg

(qund pasies e yum 192115 Y3 03 JudE(pe) y|eMapIs 3yl UQ :uonelo] dois

€9/169°08- :9pnisuo] 5969S5€£°8T @pmiie]

88

punoqise]

punoqisom

2Lt 98ed

010yd [ejuawsjddng

00t'P$ 150D R0 L 2L duey
Y€ :|er0L g :diysapiy S :150) S :Jeuonesado g Arajes g :AuqIssandy :Juodg

¢ :uny Jod diysiapiy a8esany

sBululey 910e19933( 3|gISS32I8 10U 3NPaYdS Juelidwod Jou ease SuiySie pue Supseog  :saunIes4 Juedwo)-uoy |
ISWAY X14 H2INY |
ON :X14 %20

oN :werndwo) yay

punogise3 :uopaaug

1S ¥SOWMd 8 075 ¥S :uonedot

9¢011 Qi



89

JBNO
3lepul,

S punoqise3
05T 93ed
|
[ ‘sdweds quno Agueau ay3 01 SSUILIEM 3]GRIIIP
_ B3.E 198 3} 4O BPISINO PUE [EM3PIS Y3 JO 35pa 2yl Yim ysny st 3l
| 1By} 05 Youaq 3Y} A0 “ABMBALIP SUNSIXS 3Y] 01 ¥R 33 193UU0D 01 yied
| SE & ppy ‘BaJE ¥12g AU 104 GBS 8X,5 [9A3| B 3ARJ ISE3 009 OIS 3Yl 3AO|Al :SUOIIBPUSWIUOIDY
| [1B19Y ‘|RIDJSWIWOD /39440 isi01esauan dug
:U01IBUUO) 3|GISSIIIY :(sayaur) gan) wouy 3dueIsiq
_ :03u] Jieyajadym :uonipuo) Ja}ays ON :J313ys
— — ————— e - i
53\ :asepng dwey qin) sa\ :adojs dwey qin) _
soA :dwey qn?) 18 UONISURI] YIOo0WS saA :dwey qin)
:Bulusem s|qersiag , vz “WIPIM (N4 2Iqed239q |
:uopuo) Suiusepy a|qe1rn1ag oN :Suiusepn sjqe1dsrag
noqyyo
S3A  MjleMSSOI) PR1IR10Id SaA HIeMSSOID) pdjIeIN _ ol0yd [eauawaiddng u::onﬁ:o.m . _ punoqyuon
S :(193y) yapiw llemapIs
ON :uoneas|3 ui afueyd v/t ON :U0RIBUUO) Y|eM3PIS
sia1iieq ON :Sid1Ieg V38
UOIINIISGO ON :SUORINIISYO V'RE

6 :(%) adojs ssoi) €0 (%) 2do|s Suiuuny
Juelsisad dijs Jo ‘e|qels ‘Wi 10U 3IBLING TUCIHPUO) VBT
SSA 194ES V'3d i S}

SSEAD/1AQ :s|edle v'i3d 7

:eale yigg e syudaaud 1eym

|
ON :9|gISSa20Y INPaydIs

:uonINIISqQ ueayses] :9]qiss920Y uBdYseI]
ON :uoldnisgo youag ON  :9|qISS92IY Youag
3INpayas sng ‘(Aled pJg) youag :sarnudwy =
wod udis doss sng piepuers :aeuss | -  00L'0TS 1507 (€101 09y Djuey
3\ :Aoaui0) pajunow usis 9-4 2dAL ySieH/adAL qin) ¥T :je30L g :diysapiy 0T~ :150) ¢ :Jeuonesadgo 8 Alayes S :AuqIsseny :Suliods

= . =———— 7 :uny Jad diysiapry aSesany
SUON SpJezeH |

UO[3095123U] JO SPISIEAU UO 1831151y :UOIIIISIBIU| O} UOIIEI|RY

4N pasiey oN ‘sSuiuiepy
2|qe3213Q ‘3|qissedde 10U 3|NpaydS ‘Jueldwiod 1ou eale Sunysije pue Sulpieog ‘3|qISS323e JOU Youag  :sainiead Jueydwio)-uoN
3ue| NJY)-|9A.J} B U] :UOnEIO0T shg

(g4n2 pasies e yum 19215 2y 03 Juadelpe) 3|eMapIs 3yl uQ :uonelo dois

youdg 91e30|9Y SWIY| XI4 HIAND

ON Hueldwod yay S9A Xi3 %AND

dely €56689°08- :apnusuol £L6695€'8T Bpnije]

punogisel :uonlaJig

437V3T HYD SUPADA ANINIF 8 075 ¥S :uoneso Y0011 :al



PO
SEPUIL

|EMIpIS AQJB3U BY) 0} BBIE \'Rg 3} 198UU0D 0}

yied 05 e aned ‘BaJE YIRg B3I JO IPISINO PUR X|EMIPIS Ay} JO 98P 8y Yyum

ysnijs 34e A3yl 0S 3INPIYIS pue Youaq 3y} SAOIA 'B3JE ¥13g Yl 10} B[S ,8X,S
[979] & 2Aed PUB SHDLIQ BY} JO UOIIIS B BAOWSY "15eD ,05E dOIS Byl BAOIN :SUONEPUSWIWOIDY |

|IE19Y ‘[eraWWw0)/32140

:s101e49U99 dii)

[ :U0I}I3UU0) 3|qISSIIY
101u] JieYd|33ym

:(sayour) qun) wouy duelsiqg
1UonIpuo) 193Ys ON :49)3Ys

59 :@2epns dwey qun)

saA :adojs dwey qin)
S9,A :dwey qun) 1e uonsuel] Yroows
:Buluiepn sqeldanaa e
:uonipuo) Sulusepn 9qerrnaqg

saA :dwey qin)
YIptan ind ejqedatag

s3A :Sumuep ajqealag

SOA SOA

BUCIERPE|

SSA  {|eMSSOL) pPR1IB10.d SBA D)|eMSS0L) padIe

ON :uoneas|y w aduey) /1 SDA 1UOIIIBUUOD Y|emapIS
("212 ‘sa3yduaq ‘sued 33seMm ‘SIXOQ [0J1U0D) DINILINY 193115 PIXIH :siaLieq ¥Rd
(7212 ‘sayauaq ‘sued 31SeMm) 2UNYIUINY 1911 B|qRIAOIAl 1SUOIIINIISqO V'RY

T (%) 2dols sson) S'0 :(%) adojs Sutuuny |

Juelsisal di|s 10 ‘3|gels ‘WUl 10U JB4ING UOIIPUO) V'Y
SSA :3JBS v'89 9yl S|

paned Ajjelled sjeualey vigg

SOA B34 YR B 213yl S|

ON  :9[qI$§920Y Npayds
_ 1UO01IdNIISAQ Uedysed| :19]qISS8I2Y UBDYSEI |
| SSA uonINIISqO Yyauag ON  :3]qI1s$932Y youag

_ dINPaY2s sng ‘(Alied pJg) youag :samuswy
150d uBis dois sng paepuess :ageusis

saA :App2aul0) paunopy usis 9-4 3dAl :3ySioH/adAL qan)

3UON spJezeq
UOID9SI3UI 4O BPIS 1B} UO ‘193115 1Y :UOI3IISI3IU| 03 UOIIED|IY
3Ue| NJY3-|aABI) B U| :UOIIEIO] Sng |

(Q4no pasies e yum 192115 oY) 01 JUAdE(pE) yjemaps syl uQ :uonedo] dois |

8EELSE'8T apniney

€8C689°08- :9pnuduol

699 @8ed

010yd |euawajddng

Ld

009°LS 150D {e10] LYT Hjuey |
6 A1oyes
T

€ |eyoL :diysapiy 0 150D S :jeuonesadQ 5 :Au)iqissaldy :Suuods

:uny Jad diysiapiy afesany
2|gissadde

10U 3[nPayYds ‘uerjdwod jou edse FunySije pue Suipieog ‘9|qISS3IR 10U YIUSG ‘UONINIISGO Youag  :SaIniedd wendwo)-uon

youag 31e30[3Y SWIY Xi4 YAND

puNoOQgISaA  :uolIBNQg oN :juendwo) ygy

SBA 14 N0

TVIN FIYNOS LLIYHIN 8 025 ¥S :uonedo]

1964¢ :al



ANy
el

m . 049 98eq

‘sdwes qun3 Ageau a1 01 sBuILIEM B|QEIIBISP PPY “[emapIs Aqiesu
3y} 03 B3LE YR BY1192UU0D 0] Yyled G7 B 3ABY "BIJE YR BUt 40} QB[S 8X,S
_ |9A3] e 2aed pUE $3214g 3Y1 JO UONRDIIS € SA0WSY 1583 ,06 OIS BUYL SAOIAl SUOIIEPUIWILLOISY

[ |Ie19Y ‘JeIDIBWWOD /NP 5101818Ud5 dir] |

1UOI}IBULO) 3[qISSIIIY :(s3ydu1) qun) wouy dueisiq

:03u] JIlBYI[RDYM :uonipuo) J913ys ON :193j3Yy§
S3A :92euns dwey gin) ssA :ado|s dwey qun)
s, :dwey qIn) 18 UOIISUEI] Y100WS saj :dwey gin)
:Suluiem sjqeidaled v YIPIM {INd 31qeI1D8Q
:uonIpuo) Sujutep 9qe191ag oN  :Sulusep a|qe1ddea

SBA  ||EMSS0J) P212910id SOA DY|EMSSOI) paYJel 0104d JeudwWa|ddns

punoqyinos

S :(3994) w1pIM lEMmapIS
ON :uopiea3j3 ui aduey) /1 ON :UOII3UUO) H|emapIs
siallleq O :sidlleg ¥Ry

uoI1oNI1SqO ON :SUOIINIISYO V'3
8'0 :(%) adoys ss01) 70 (%) adojs Suiuuny
1uels|sas di|s Jo ‘3)qe1s ‘W 10U 9BLINS UOIHPUO) VRY |
SO\ 18)eS v'3d ayl1 S|
paned Aljenied :siensleln ved | .......t»
_ ‘eale vigg e sluaaaud 1eym Hf p
Op ‘eale yigg B 319yl S|

:3]qissa20Y IINpayds

| 1u013dNIISqQ uedyses| 19|(ISSIIIY UBIYSEI]
V/N :uondnnsqQ youag Y/N :3|q1ss922y Yiuag

JUON  :saudwWY | i

| 1sod uBis dois snq pJepueis :afeugdis | I
| saA :A[1810) paruno usis 9-4 3dAL :y8ieH/adAL qun) 17 ‘er01

SUON spJezeH
UOI3D35131U1 JO 3PIS JBy UO ‘19315 1Y 1UOIIIBSI3IU| 0} UolIed|ay
3UB| NIYI-[3ARIY B U] :UOIEIO] Shg

(g4n> pasies e yum 33315 3Y3 01 JuddRIPE) Y|IBMBPIS 31 UQ :uoIleI0] dols

pUnOgISapL  tuondaIIq

CEN €95%89°08- :@pnusuo] 89E€LSE'BT vpniie]

:diysapry 0 150D S :leuonessdQ 2 Aajes

T
sduiutep 9|qe1rn1aq uendwod jou eale Sunysie pue Suipieog

ON :ueldwo) vay

ANId X33YD SINAS B 07S ¥S :uonesol

000°Z$ 3503 |BI0L 987 Hjuey |

¥ :AUIqIssa2IY :Sunodg

:uny aad diysiopty aderany

:s34n1ea4 jueldwo)-uoN
1SWa)| X14 )20
ON X134 321D

¢964¢ Qi



92

— S e - punoqisapm punoqse3

19¢ 93ed

'sduwes qund Agseau ay) 01 s3uluiem 3|qe1da13p PPY
"B9JE \/73d 9Y1 JO SPISINO PUER 3|BM3IPIS @Y JO 3Fpd
3Y1 YUM ysn)y sl 11 1BYL 0S Youag Yl SA0IA “|qISSI0De 11 3xew 0] Juswaned
3y1 01 1usdelpe 3)NpayIs sNQ Y1 Yim 2jod 8yl SAO "UOII3SIIIUI
AgJesu ay} 01 eaJe Y7g 3yl WOIY }EMIPIS G B PPY T 310U 935 "Edse ¥13g
| 3Yy1Joyqund g pasiel B yum qe|s 8x,§ [3A3] B 3Aed "YyuouU 08 dO1S 54 SADIA SUOHEPUWIWO0IDY

|ie13y ‘|BI2JBWIWOD/20I4O :si0lesauan duj

1U011I3UU0) JqISSINY :{sayaur) gin) wouy dduelsig
:01u| 1eYdd3aym 1uoIIpUO) 3 3YS ON :13Y3Ys
_ sa) :2epuns dwey qin) sa :3dojs dwey gin)
594 :dwey qIn) 1B UoINSUEB] Yloows sa ) :dwey qin)
:3uluem 2jqe1alaa vz “YIptm find 9jqeldsiaq
:uoIpuo) Sulutepn a[qeldalaqg ON :Suluiepn 9)qe1de3aq@ _
SOA  ||emssOI) po1Ial0id SOA YjEMSSOID) paYIBIA v::.oa.mtwl

:(3934) yapIw yjemapis
ON :uoneas|3 ui adueyd ,v/1T *UoRIIUUO)) HemapIS

| sislueq ON :si3lueg yg
| UoI10NJISqO ON :SUOIINIISAQ V'gg
2'5 (%) adojs sso1) £0 (%) 2dojs Suiuuny
Juelsisas dis Jo ‘8]GeIS ‘Wil JOU 2JBLING :UOKIPUO) YV'RE
S9A 19JBS \'9d 91 S|

SSEJD /11 :S|BUIIBIA VRY

:eae yigg e siuanaad leym

S3\ 1B3Je yRg B a12Y) S}

| ON  :9]qISS9I2Y 3|NPayYIs 7
| :UoI1INASqO Uedyses| :9|qISSa22y uedyse| |
| ON :uoIPMISqQ Yyduag ON  :8]qIssa23y yauag

ST Calel s o

| 3[npayds sng ‘(Aued pig) youag :sanuawy

150d uBis dois snq piepuess :aSeudis o ooo.mm 1150) |e1oL L6t Hjuey
saA :Aj32a140) pajunop usis auoN :ydisH/adAL qun)

21 :1eyo1 g :diysapiy S- 1150) S :jeuopelsadp S A1ajes T- :AuqIssa2dy :Sulodg

= 7 :uny 13d diysiapry sdesany
3UON SspsezeH

) N3 pasiey oN ‘sSuiuem
HOHISSISIUL JO SPIS S} UO 12015 1Y :UORIISISIUI 0FUORESIBY || 56153190 ‘21q1552098 10U 3NPIYIS ‘Juel|dwiod Jou ease Builysije pue Suipieog ‘8|qISS3I2e JOU YIUIG  :San1ead Jueydwod-uoN

QUE| NIY)-|2ABJ] B U] :u0l1ed0] sng | Ydousg 21302y Sswad) Xi4 JanD

oN :juendwo) vav S3A X140

Aempeos jo Jap|noys pasedun ue uQ :uonesojdois punogquINos :uondang

€4595€°8¢ apniie

AMSD ANYISI LLIMYIIN 378 AMMd H33HD SINAS S :uonedo] STOTT a1

LE 1/€89°03- :apnusuo




JRNO
Slepul,

‘sdwes qind Agueau ayi 01 sSuluuem s|qe1dslap
ppY "G 310U 385 "e3Je y13d 9yl JO 3PIS Je) 3y] U0 paleao| st udis dois sng
3} 3.Ns e "JB1BYS 01 J350|2 pue yied 3ouq 9yl woly Aeme USIS A0 SUOIIEPUIWILIOIDY

|Ie18Y ‘|BIDIBWWIO0) /3040  (Ss01RIBURD du|

S9A  :UOIIIBUUO)D) B|QISSIIIY

S9A 103U JIRYIBIYM poo9 :uompuo) 1333YS SaA 14912Ys

saA :@aepns dwey gin)
saA :dwey qin)

*UIPIM [N 3|ge1I91Rq
onN  :Bulurepn 31Gge13919Q

ssA :dwey gin) 1e uonisuel] yroows
:Suluiepn 91qe1nlaq v

:uopuo) Suluiepn 3|geIdRlaq

SBA  Df|emssol) pe1a9losd SSA H|eMSS01) payIe

ON :uonea3|3 ui aduey) v/t SSA 1UO0I}I3UUD) HY|emMIpIS
sialueq oN :siauueg yieg
u0I10MJ1Sq0 ON :SU013INIISqO V'34d
T°0 :(%) adojs Buiuuny

$139J3p ON UOIPUO) V39

SIA :3JES 189 9yl S|

1240U0)) :S|elIdIeN VY

(e3Ie y1Rg B SJUdALd 1By

10 :(%) ado|s sso)

S9A :B3le y'34 e 219y} S|

ON :UOIDNIISGO UBdYSEI | SOA  :9)qISSaIY UeIYSeI|
Y/N :uonInisqo youag v/N
UBD YSeI] ‘BINpayds sng  :salpudwy

19]qISsa20y Youag

1s0d uBis dois snq piepuels :adeudis

saA :Aj123110) parunow udis 9-4adAl :ySisH/adAL qun)
SUON spJezeq

UO1123531U1 JO 3PS JBf UO 1331151y :UCIIIISIBIU| 0} UONED|IY
SUE| NJY}-[aABJY B U] :UOIIRIOT Sng

Aempeo) Jo Jsp|noys pasedun ue ug :uopelol dois

EE T16789°08- :apnuduo]

YYQLSE'RT @pmne]

09 :(saydut} qin) wouy dueIsIq

sax :adojs dwey qin)

04T 28ed

ol0yd reluawajddng

S :{399)) WP NjEMBPIS |

ON  :3|qiISS2I2Y 3NP3YIS

93

punoqiIsam punoqise3

punoqyinos punoqyloN

b T SRR e e gD

AR |2 o] § g :diysapiy

punogise3 :uondaug

85 muey |

0T :150) S :leuonesadQ S Aoyes 6 :Aigissaddy :8uniods

Z :uny aad diysiapry adesany

SJululep 21gR1IB13Q ‘91qISSI00L J0U JNPAYIS  :S3INIED] wejdwo)-uon
ISWwal X14 20D

oN :uendwo) yay ON :X1439IND

SNIFYOTYM 8 AMMd H3ITYD SINAS SOTS ¥S :uoneIo]

yZ0TT :al



A0
3[epulL

‘sdwes gna AgJeau ay3 03} sBululem 3|qe1IBI3P PPY "B3Je ¥Rg 3yl JO
3PISINO pUE 3|EMRPIS 3Y JO 38PS 3UL YUM YSN|§ Si 1 18yl 05 UdUS] 3Y1 BAOIA|
*3|qIss339. SI 1 0s JuswaAed ay} 0} Juade(pe Pa1edo| St JNPaYIS sNg YL
Yum 210d 3y3 2InS 3NEIA Hf[EMIPIS BUIlSIXa By} 01 ¥18g 2yl 198Uu 0 0} Yyied
|G B ppY 'eaJe ygqg 9y} JO) OB|S ,8X,G [3A3] B anBg ‘ISES (/7 dO1S 3Yl SAOIAl :SUOIIEPUIWILIOIDY

1U0I3IBUUO) B|qISSIIIY
uonIpuo) 1BY3YS

ON 2)3Ys

:03U( JIBYD[IIYM

saA :9depns dwey qand

saA :dwey qn) 1 uoIHsueL] Yioows
:Suluiepn a|geddea , e

:uopuo) Suiuiepn 9qe1ddeq

SaA  j|EMSSOID) PR1I3I0Id

aJe) AeQ/|00yas QUBWIUIBA0Y :Si01eaudD diuj

:(sayour) qun) wouy dduelsiq .

saA :odojs dwey qun)y |

saA :dwey qin)

*YIPIM Ind 3|qe13918Q
on  :Sujusepn 9jqeldsieq
ST\ H|BMSSOI) payIe Al

ON :uoneaajg ui afuey) ,v/T

9'¢T :(%) 2do|s sso)
_ juelsisad di|s Jo ‘a|qels ‘wul

9 :(1934) uIpIM YiemaplS
ON :UOI123UU0) H[EMIPIS
sialieq oN :sialleg g

UOIIIMNIISGO ON :SUOIPINIISO V'3d

70 (%) adojs Sutuuny

10U 82E4INS UOINPUO) Y34
SSA :9JBS V39 Y3 S|

SSeID /1 S|B9l V'R
:eaJe yigg e syuanasd 1eym
ON :e3Je y'gg e 343y} S|

ON  :3|qISS822Y dNPayYds

_ 1UOIIINIISGO UBdYSe. L :9[ISSIDY UBIYSEI )
| ON :uondINAsqQ yousg OpN  :9|qISS320Y Youag
3|npayds sng ‘(Aled pJg) youag :sapiuawy

1sod uBis dojs snq plepuels :afeudis

s9A  :A|129.40) pauno usis 9-4 adAL :ySreH/adA) qun)

UO0I0SI3IU| 4O BPIS S} U0 ‘19341S Iy

3UON spiezeq
:U011235191U| 0) UONEIIY

QUE| NJY}-|oABI} B Ul tUOnEedOo] sng

Aempeoud jo Jap|noys pasedun ue uQ :uopelo dois

G€88/9'08- :3pnuduoi

€CrLSE'8C apnuie]

¥7£7 98ed

o10yd |ewuaiajddng punoqyinos

609 Hjuey |
¢ Aupgissenoy :8uuods |

00t6$ :150) |R10]

/:|e10]. 0 :diysepiy G- :3150) S :leuonesado 5 Aajes

0 :unyJad diysiapiy adesany _
sutuiepn |

3|qe129312( ‘9jqIss932e 10U 3|NPayds ‘uendwod 1ou eale Sunysie pue Suipieog ‘9|gISSaddE JOU YdudY :SINlea4 Jueljdwol-uoN [
youag 21ed0|2y :SWaY| Xi4 HIUNY
ON :wueldwo) yav SBA XI4 }2IND _

pUNOgISEM  :uoiIIBNQ

ANVISI SINVMVY B 076G ¥S  :uonedlo

1011 a1



JRANO
2epuly,

‘sdwes quna Agueau sy 01 sgululem 3|ge1IR1ap PPY "eale ¥Rg

91 40 2pISINO PUE 3|EMIPIS BY] JO 3SPD Y1 YUM YsSn} 5) 1 18y 0S Youaq
BU2 9AOIA| "9(qISSD0E 1 SHew 0] JudwaAed ay) 03 Jusdelpe sjnpayas sng
a3 yum 3jod 2yl aA0IAl “3|emapis Builsixa ayl 01 yigg B4l 109Uu0d 01 yred
\G B PPY "€3.B 'Rq 3y} 10} GBS ,8X,§ |9A3] B 3ned "15am 07 dO1s ay3 ano

SUONEpPUIWILUOIY

UBWUIBA0D) :si0}esauan duy

:U01323UU0) J|qISSAIIY :(saydur) gIn3 wouy 3duelsiq

03uj JIBYI[RRYM {UOIIpUO) JBYBYS ON :13)dYs
534 :@2epns dwey qan) sa, :adojs dwey qin)
saA :dwey qJn) e uollIsuel] Yyloows sa) :dwey qin)
:Buiusep sjqernnLa v YIPIM 1IN 91qe31a33aQ
ruoipuo) Sujusepn ajqerdrniag ON :Suuaepn ajqerdniag

S3A  DjJemssos) paldalold SIA DIIEMSSOI) PN

S :(1934) YyIPIM yjemapIs

ON :uoneas|y w aluey) .v/T S\ 1UOIBUUOD jEMBPIS

siallleq ON :siauieg y'gg

(219 ‘s3YdUBQ ‘Sued 91SEM) IUNIUIN, 19315 S[GESAOI SUOIPNIISO V'Y
¢'1 :(%) ado|s ssoi) S0 :(%) ado|s Buiuuny
1welsisad dijs 10 ‘3qe)s ‘Wwuly 10U SIBLNS 1UONIPpUO) V3]

S9A 19JBS V'3d 3y si

5SelD /1 s|euielN viRd |
:eaJe yeyg e syuanald 1eym

ON B3R \Zg & 319Y] S|

ON  :9|(ISS322Y JnpPayds
1UoINIISqQ Uedysedp 13|qISS322Y uedYses)
S3A 1UOPINIISQO Yduag ON  :3]qISsa2dY youag

3INpPayYds sng ‘(Aled pig) yousg :sauswy
15od u8is dois sng psepueis :afeudis

S9A :A|323110) pajuno udis 9-4 9dAL nyJey/adAL qun)

QUON spJezeH

UOI1395191Ul JO BPISIe3U UO 183415 1Y  :UO13I9SIdlU| O} uolnes|ay

3UB| NUY}-|9ABJ} B U| :UOKEIOT Shg

{Mlemapis e 1noyum) qnd pasies e ug :uonelo] dois

deW 82£8/9°08- :apnuBuo]

66045¢'87 :epniie]

597 a8ed

0104d |eIuawalddng punogyinos

009°LS ‘150D je10L 89¢ Hjuey |
7z 1.0l g :diysapry 0 :1s0) € :Jeuonesado g Aajes ¢ :Aupqissady :Sunods
Z :uny iad diysiapry a8esony
qin) pasiey oN ‘s8uluiepn 9|geIRIRQ ‘9gIssadie
10U 3INpayds ‘Juerdwod jou eale uilysje pue Suipleog ‘9|qISSIIIE 10U YOUIG ‘UOIDNIISGO Ydoudg  :Saanjea tuendwo)-uoN |
youag 21820(3Y :SWIY Xi{YIAND

punogisey :uonIsag ON :jueldwo) ygy SAA X14)IIND

30IS HLNOS ANYIS! SINVMYY 8 075 ¥S  :uonedol

61011 :al



RO ™
S|epilL

CEIER T

243 JO 3PISINO pUE Y|emapIs 3yl o 33pa ay3 yum ysnjy aJe Asyl 0s 3[npayas
pUB Yauaq 3yl 3now “sdiiel gind Agqueau ayy 01 sululem 3|qeldisp

PPY “Sj|emapis BuiIsIXa 941 01 ¥'3g U3 102UU0D 0} yied QT B PPy "I 810U

_ 295 "B3JE Y'g9 DY) 104 GUND 9 PISIEL B YUM QB[S ,8X,G |IA3| € 3ARd "%7=>
| Jo 2dO[s 5502 B BARY 0] BRUE Y19 9y} 90BLNS3Y “Isam ,00¢ dOIS ay) anolN

_ __B.mm

SUONEPUBWWIOIAY |

‘|e1DJaWWO) /010  :siojessulg dul

| 1UOHIBUUO) J)GISSIIIY :(sayaul) gy woly 3dUelsIq |

7 103u] J1BYIJIIYM 1UORIPUO) JAYIYS ON :8)3ys |

_ saj :@2epuns dwey qun) sa) :odojs dwey qin)

53, :dwey gqun)
“YIPIM |Ind 31qe1d=31aq

ON :8ululepn a|qed81ag

saA :dwey gin) e uonisuel] yioows

:Suluiem 3|qe1alaa v
:uoiipuo) Suiuiepn a|qeldalaqg

S3A  DjjEMSSOI) PalIR0Ld S3A j|emSS0I) paYIe

— ||
S :(3234) YIPIM NIEMIPIS

ON :uoijeas)3 ui afuey)d v/t ON  IUOI3I9UUD) Y[BMIPIS

si3luieq ON :sialled vigg

uoildnilsqo oN :suoldnnsqQO v'34d
'L :{%) ado|s ssox) €0 :(%) adojs Suuuny
juelsisas dijs JO ‘3)ge)s ‘Wl 10U DIBLINS UOIPUO) V'Rd
S3A :8)eS ¥'RE By S|
SSBID) /11(] SjelDIeIN V'RY |

:eale yigg e spuanasd 1eym

SIA -B3JE Y'Rg B 313U} S|

:9|qI5s320Y INPayds

ON
1U0IINIISqQO Uedyser| :9|qISS820Y uedYSel |
ON :uolINISqQO Yduag ON  :3]qIS5920Y youag

S

3|npayds sng ‘(Alued pig) yousg
1sod udis dois snq psepueis :afeusis

sy |

s3A :A[198.110) paiunowy usis auoN :yday/adAL gin)

= —— R !
SUON spJezeq

UoI129s431U| JO 3pIS Jej Uo 1991151y :uondvsIaU| 0] uoiles|ay

3UB| NIY)-[2ARJL B U| :UOIIRIOT SNg _

Aempeol Jo sapnoys pased e ug :uonedoi dois

S0T899°08- :@pnusuo)

807/SE'8¢ :apnine]

96

punogisam punoqise3

6. 38ed

030yd |euawaddng punoqyinos

punogqyuoN

006'8% 150D |E10L  6TS Hjuey
s Alojes 7 :Aupqissardy :8uods |
T

q4nD pasiey oN ‘s8ujulep
5|qe1d313( ‘3|qISSaIe 10U BINPaYdS ‘Jueljdwos Jou ease Sunysie pue Suipeog ‘3|qissa0le J0U Yousg  :sainiea4 Jueldwodr-uon

TT :feloL v :diysepiy G- 180D S :JeuonesadQ

:uny Jad diysiapiry a8esany _

yauag 31820[3Y :SWIAY X1 YD

punogise3 :uopdaNg oN :uendwo) yay S3A 143Ny |

:uoneloq

HQ JOFYYH ONNO4MIN 8 0ZS HS 08¢T1 :al



B0
ajepu|

dois SNQ ay3 JO4 SUOIIEPUIWILIOI3I ON (SUOIBpUdWIWOIIY |

|le1oy  :ss03esdudn duag

:UO0I}IBUUO0) 3|qISSIIIY

101U HBYI|I3YM u

:(ssyaur) qan) woiy adueisiq
uo) 13|3Ys ON :J9)3Ys _

saA :9deuns dwey qan)
53, :dwey qJn) je uolIsuel] Yioows
4
:uonpuo) Suluiepn 31qe1rslaq

S9A  :Butwrep sjgqe1dasadg
poos
ON :j|emssou) paldaload

saA :adojs dwey gin)
saA :dwey qund 7

YIPIW 1INd 21qe912a

saA :Buluiep 21geIdaleg _

SOA

S2A DH|BMSS0I) PINIBIA|

ON :uoneaa[y w adueyd ,v/1

7’0 (%) odojs ssou)

:(199)) YIpIW Sliemapis
1U0I1I3UUG) K| BMIPIS

S¢
SSA
5J314ieq ON :SialIeg yRg
UOIINIISQO ON :SUORAINISQO VY |
2°0 (%) adojs Suiuuny

S13)2p ON :uopIpuo) v3g | |

SSA :94eS vipd a3 si
212J0U0)) :S|EMRIBN VB
:eale yipg e syuanaid Jeym
S9/ :E3Je Yi3g B 213Y) §|

1uondNIIsqQ uedlyses)
V/N :uonannsqo yYousg

S2A :Aj129.410) pajunoy udis

S9A :I3|GISSaIIY I[NPAYIS
19|qISS3IIY UeIYSe |
v/N

3|npayos sng

:3|qISSa2IY YIuag

SauUaWY

79t 238ed

0joyd [eluawajddns

punoqisap

150d uBis do1s snq psepueis :afeudis
|
9-q 9dAL :yBi9H/edAL qun) |

193115 4O

Aempeod jo Japinoys pased e ug :uonelol doig |

SUON spJezeHq
:U01129513}U]| 0} UOIES| DY
BUE[ NIY}-[ABLY B U[ :UONEIOT] SNy |

989899°08- :3pnUuo]

¥8065E'8C apniie]

71T [e1oL 0 :diysapiy

PUNOQIS3AN  :uoHI3NQ

0$ :1s0) [e10]
£ A1ajes

TT Hjuey

00T :150) 7 :leuonesadp 6 :Au)iqrssaddy :Suliods

0 :uny sad diysiapiy aSesany

:s31n3e34 el dwo)-uonN
:SWAY Xi4 YIAND
ON Xi4 331D

S8A endwo) yay

LYVYAFTYM 78 HIINID YIdNS LYVIN-TYM  tuoiiedo

9101T :al




RANO
Qepul

‘sdweus quna AgJeau ay3 01 sSuiuiem 3|qe10313p PPY "BaJE y1gg 2yl JO
9pISINO pue |emapls 8yl Jo 28pa ayl yum ysny} si 3 1Byl 0S YdU3q 3yl BA0N
"3|q1s53238 1 3¥ew o3 Wwawaned 3y1 01 Juddelpe 3Npayds snq ayl yim ajod
3Y1 3A0|A "UONID3sI21UI AQUERU 3] 01 BaJe ¥iRd Syl WOJ) Y|EMIPIS ,OF B ppY
"I 910U 385 "B3Je 199 Y1 0§ qUND g PIsIel B YyUM Je|S 8X,S [9AS| B BABJ :SUOIIRPUILIWOIDY

|1e19Y |BI2IBWWOD /31O S103eI2ud9 di)

1U01122UL0) 3qISSIIIY {sayaul) qun) wouy dueisiq

101U JIBYIRRYM IUOIHPUO) IBY3YS ON :49)3Ys

sa, :2dojs dwey qin)

s, :dwey qInJ Je uoSuel] Yioows soA :dwey qin)
YIPIM [IN4 B1qE33819a

oN  :Suruiepn 31qea13q

:Butusepn dqerrLlaq e
‘uoiIpuo) 3uluiep 9|qe1dlaq

_ SDA  I[EMSSOI) PI1III0Ud S\ |EMSSOID) PAIYIBIN
|

_ S :(193)) yIpm Hemaprs |
_ ON :uoneag|3 w1 aduey) v/t ON :u0I329uUu0) Y|emapis
Si3llJeq ON :sJauleg yig |
UoI10NIISGO ON :SuolNNSGO v'3d
S0 (%) adojs sson) £'0 :{%) ado|s 3utuuny
Juelsisad dijs 40 ‘9|qe3s ‘Wl JOU 3IBLING :UOIHPUOD) V3
SOA :3JeS vi3d 9yi s|
$SedD/1d sjeldleN vigd |

ON  13)qISSIIY BNPaYIS
[
1UOIINIISO UBIYSEL |

:9|qISS320Y UedYSEl )

SSA :uoleNIISqO Youag ON  :3]qISS320Y youag
3INpayas sng ‘(Alied pig) youag :sanuswy |

1s0d u8is dois snq piepuels :adeusis

534 :AjaRuI0) parunop udis 3UON :3yJisH/adAL qin) |

SUON sptezeH

UOND3SIS]UI JO SPISIEAU UO ‘19915 1Y 1UOIFIBSIDIU| 03 uoNes|ay
3UE) NILI-[3ABJL € U] 1UOREIOT SN |
Aempeou 4o Japjnoys pased e uQ :uoneloq dojs |

7T1599°08- :apnuuol

TE€TLSE'8¢C apnuie]

98

S 101 s
punogise3

punoqisam
¥9¢ 28ed

01044 |eluawa|ddng punoqyuoN

punogise3 :uondang

80T Hjuey |
0 :ANjiqIssaxdy :Sulodg

0018 13507 |eI0)

1€ :jeroL 8z  :diysspry G- :150) € :leuonesado S Aeges

£ :uny iad diysiapiy afesany
ginD pasiey ON ‘s3uluiepn 91qe10939Q ‘9)gIssadde
10u 3|npayds uerjdwod jou este Sunysije pue Suipieog '9|qissadoe 10U Youag ‘U0IPMIISQO Youag  :sainiedq weldwo)-uopn
youag 21e50|9y :SWa} Xi4 yNND
ON :juerndwo) yay SOA XI4 }AAND

40 YIAIY YNVYNVYE N '3 0ZS ¥S :uoneao

81011 Al



ASANC
s|epulL

3|NPaYIs sNq 3y} yum )

“3|qI55970€ 11 Hew 0} Judwaned ay) 0] Juadelpe
|0d 2} SAO £ 'R¢g 23 JO IPISINO PUE 3|EMSPIS

9Y3 JO 98P3 Y1 YNM Ysni4 I 31 1eyl 0S Youaq 3yl SACIA “|EMBPIS BUnsIxe
243 01 39 941 303Uu0d 0} yled 07 e ppy ' 910U 935 "B3JR Y19 SY3
104 QIND g PaSIEs B YUM ge|S ,8X,G [9A3] B 9ARd "1Sed 0T d03S Y} SAOA| SUOIIEPUSWILI0ISY

jle1oy  :S103eJ3UdY di}

1UO0I193UUO) JIGISSIIIY :(sayduil) gqan) wouy sdueIsI]g |

103U) J1eyd3daym ‘uonipuo) J23|3Ys ON :J3l3ys
—— ————————————————————————teiallituts |

s3) :92euns dwey qJn) 53, :adojs dwey qin)

s, :dwey qJn) 1e uotHsuelj Yloows saj :dwey qin)
s9A  :Buiuiepm a|qerdniaq bz S9A  YIPIW 1IN 31qeidaleq _

1U3122%]  :uoiupuo) Suluaeps 3jgeIIRIBQg sap :Suiuiepn sjqerdsrag
SOA  )|EMSSON) pIIIVI0Id S3A D[EMSS0I) PBLIBIN-
= —

S :(3934) YIpIm jemapls

ON :uoneaaj3 ul 3duey) ,v/T ON :UOI329UU0) Y|BMIPIS
Sisliieq ON :siduueg yigd

uo131oNJ1Sqo ON :SUO0IINIISqO V39

8'T (%) ado|s 55040 20 :(%) 2do|s Buiuuny

1uelsisal dijs 1o ‘3|gels ‘Wllf 10U DIBLNS (UOTHPUO) YR

SaA :8Jes y1g9d 3yl S|

SSEJD/11Q S|eudleN viRg

:ease yigg e sjusnad Jeym |
|

1UOIINIISGQ UBdYSes] :9|q155320y uedYses|
ON :uondNIsqQ Youag ON  :3]qISS@0Y Yyouag
9INpayas sng ‘(Aled pig) youag :saiyuswy

150d uSis dois snq pJepueis :afeudis

S9A  :A[129.10) pajunop usis suoN :ySieH/adAL qun) |

3UON spJezeH
UOI19SI31U| JO 3PIS JBJ UC ‘183115 1Y :UOI1IISIdIU| 01 UoIe3|3Y
3ue| NJY)-[BABIY B U) :UONEIOT Shg |

Aempeol 1o Japjnoys pasedun ue uQ :uone’ol dois

L¥S999°08- :@pnu3uo] 8LSLSE'8T opniie]

S9A el yRRG e 243Y3 S| | 14

punogqisam
0/t 38ed —

010y |eauawa|ddng

00£°2$ ©150D[B3I0L  69F juey |
€T :|e1o) 0 :diysapiy 0 :1s0) S :JeuonesadQ 9 A13jes 7 :Anpgissendy :Sunods

0 :uny 1ad diysiaply aSesany
qJnp
pasiey ON ‘3|qIss302e Jou 3INpayds ‘Jueldwod 1ou eale Sunydije pue Suipieog ‘3|qissadde J0U Youdg :Sa4niesd juendwor-uon
youag 91eJ0[3Y :SW3| Xi4 HIIND
ON uendwo) yay S9A IXI4 }2IND

pUnNogiSapn  :uondalg

YQ YIAIY VNYNVYE N 3 0TS ¥S :uonedot 69¢TT Qi



FRANO

S[epuilL

*3)qIss200e S1 U 0S JudwaAed Y1 01 Judde(pe Paledo| st B|NPaYIS

sng 3y yim a(od 3yl 8Ins A "edie Y138 dY3 JO IPISINO pUe |emapIs

3y3 Jo 39pa Y3 YUMm ysnyy S 3 1BY3 0S Youag Yl A0 "%g=> J0 ado|s

SSO0.1D B 9ARY 01 BRJR 3¢ 2y} 3IB4NsdY "sdwed qind Agieau ay} 01 ssululem

9)qe10913p PpY "iemapis Sudsixe syl 01 ¥igg SY1 193UU0D 03 yied 56 € PPy
*1 910U 93§ "EaJE y1[ 8y} 404 GINI g PISIEL B YHM Qe[S 8X,§ [IAD| B IABJ 1SUOIIRPUIIWOIJY

|1e13y  :$103e43UID dia|

1U0IIIBULO) J|QISSIIIY
IUOIPUO) J2YAYS ON :43)j3ys

(sayour) q4n) wouy aduelsiq
103U} JIBYI[IIYM

S9A 22epns dwey qun) s :adojs dwey qin)
sa) :dwey qun)
‘YIPIM 1IN 31qe123318Q

OoN  :Suluiepn qersIag

sa) :dwey qin) 1e uorHsuel] Yyloows
:Suiuiepn 3|qe139124 |, bT

:uonipuo) Suusepn 3jqelddaq

S Dj|BMSSOI) PIIII0Id SIA HJRMSSOI) pIBRA

S :(199) YIPIM dEMIpIS
ON :uonead|3 uw aduey) ,v/T ON :UOI3IBUUO) Y|BEMIPIS
slollleq ON :siauleg ygg

uol1oNIISqO ON SUOHIINIISqO V'3
9°9 :(%) adojg ssou) €0 (%) adojs Juuuny |
Juelsisal dijs Jo ‘9|qe3s ‘Wl J0U DBLINS :UOIHpUO) ¥'3g |

S3A 134 ¥'RG Ayl S|

SSein/1a :S|euale|n v'gg

:pale yigg e swuandxd Jeym

S9, :E3IE Y'gd B 313y} 5|

ON  :3]qISS220y INPaYds
1UOIINIISqQ UBIYSEI] :9|qISSa23Yy uedysey
ON :uonaINJIIsqQ Yausag oN
3Inpayos sng ‘(Aueq pig) yousg
150d udis dois snq psepuels :afeusis

:9|qISSaIIY Yduag
:SaUIWY
$S3A  :Aj199410) pajuno usdis 3UoN :ySiaq/edAL qun)

3UON spaezeH

UOI1395J91U1 JO 2PIS JEJ UO ‘193115 1Y :UOIIIDSISIU| O} UOHEI|9Y
3UE| NIYI-[2ABLL B U| 1UONRIOT SNg

Aempeos jo Japjnoys paredun ue ug :uoneloi dois

LC6199°08- 697LSE°8T 3pniie]

:apnuduo

100

punoqissp punoqise3

/9 @8ed

0104d |euswajddng

vE9 Hjuey |
Z Aupqissaddy :Suuodg

00Y°0TS 150D |e10)

9 :jejoL v :diysepry 01- :150) S :|euonesadQ S Aajes

T :uny iod diysiapry adesrany
gan) pasiey oN ‘s8ujuiepn
9|qe1033a( '9)q15s303e JoU 3|NPay2s “ueydwod 1ou ease 3unysije pue Buipieog ‘9|qISS3I0e J0U YIudg :53INIE3H Jueldwo)-uoN
youag 91e20|2y SWI X4 RAIND
ON :weydwo) vay S3A 14 32IND

punogise3 :uonIanQg

4d YIAIY YNYNVYE S 8 075 HS

:uolean TC¢OTT :al



SN =
s|epull

‘9]qIssad0e

2Je Ady3 os Juswaned ay} 03 Jusoe[pe PalEJO| BB YIUSG PUB JINPIYIS
snq ay1 yum ajod ay3 auns axe “dwed ay} 03 suiuem 3|qerdsIap ppy

*15B9 DY} 01 Y|EMIPIS 3Y3 O} BB yigg Y 1I3UUDI O} }|EM3PIS 0L & dred
*T 910U 335 "22JR 'R SY1 40} QUNJ g PISIEL B YUM GBS 8X,5 [9A3] B 3AB] :SUOIEPUIWIWOIIY

{219y |e1DI2WWOoD /3210 S403e1duan dir)

:(sayour) gin) wouy aduelsiq
ON :49Y3ys

1U0I}I3UUOY) 3|qISSaIIY
103U} JIBYI|IIYM 1UOINPUO) J3}|3YS

S\ :32epns dwey qun) s3) :adojs dwey gin)

ss) :dwey qan) 1B UOIHSURI] Yl00WS sa) :dwey qin)
:3uluaep 2Jqerda31ea , b2 “YIPIA [INd4 91qe3d3318q
:uongpuo) Suluiep sjqedniaq ON :Suluiepn 8|qe19aq
SIA

|EMSS01) PR1IA0Id S3A |EMSSOI) PIBIN

86¢ 9ded

101

punoqisam punogise3

punoqyinos

punoqyuoN

S :(1934) yipiw stemapis

ON :uoneas[3 ul auey) ,v/T
silileq oN
uolIdNJISqo ON :SUONINIISqO V'3g
£'0 (%) adojs Suuuny
S10343p ON :UORIPUO) V'BY
SO\ :94eS viRd @Yl S|
1eydsy :sjeusley v3d |
:edJe igg B 51uanald jJeym

S0 :(%) adojs sso1)

534 1E21e Vigd B 219y} 51 |

:31q155370Y JNPaYdS

ON
1UoNINIISqQ uedyses| :3|qISs8I0Y UBRdYSel |
ON :uoIPNNSqO Youag ON  :3[qISSa13Y Youag

3|nNpayds sng ‘(Alued pJg) yousg :sauuswy

:sialleg ygg _ W_.“. :

e

150d uis dois snq piepueis :afeusis

SoA :Apdas10) pajunopy udis suoN :ySisH/adAL qin)

3UON spJezeH
UOIID3541U 4O 2PIS JBJ UO 193115 1Y 1UOIIBSIIU| 0} UOIIR3}aY
SUB| NIYI-|9ARI) B U] 1UO1edoT SNg |

Aempeou yo Japinoys pased e up :uoneIo dois |

62/799°08- :9pmyduol

665/SE°87 apnize]

L1 7eyo)

pUNOQISIM

001'8$ :1s0] [ej0]
S Alajes 8 :Au
T :uny Jad diysiapry adesany

68t Hjuey

v :diysapiy g- 11503 S :Jeuonesadg 155320y :8uUl0dS

gJnD pasiey ON ‘sBuluiep B1qBI2313Q ‘31q1SS3ITE 10U BINPAYDS ‘B[qISSIIL 10U Ydudg  :sainieaq Juendwo)-uon
youag 91e20|2Y :SWIY XI4 YIAND

ruondaIQg oN :uendwo) yagy SA X4 2IND

LNIOd QHO4TIN 8 0TS ¥S :uonRelo]

1011 :al



RBANO ™
Slepiily

'9|qI1SS2228 511 05 JUsWaAed a3 03 JUIDE(pE PRIRIO] Sf BINPaYIS

sNg 3yt yum 3jod 3yl a.ns axe “sdwes gina Agiesu syl o1 s8uiulem

2|qe19918p PPV |emapis Bulsixa 8y} 01 39 2Y3 103UU03 03 Yyied ,§ B ppy
‘T 210U 335 "B3Je ¥R 3Y1104 0UNI g PISIEI B UM ge|S 8X,G [9AJ] € SABJ :SUOIIEPUIWOITY

|Ie39Y ‘|Bi3udpPISdY :S103eaUD di|

:(sayaul) gqun) woly aueisiq
ON :4333us

1U01393UU0) 3GISSINY

:03uf JIBYI[RIYM :uonIpuo) JaYYs

s9A :adojs dwey qin)

$9A :92epuns dwey qin)
sa) :dwey qin) 18 UoIUSURI] Yloows
:Suiuiepn ajqe3dalad , ve

:uoniIpuo) Sutniepn 2|ge1danag

s9A :dwey qin)
‘Yipim [ind 9jqeirsiag
on  :Suuaepn 9qerdaiaq

SIA  H|emssol) palIaioid ON j|eMmSSOL) paieiN

S :(1934) YIpIm Hlemapis
ON :uoneaa|3 ul8uey) /T SSA IUOIIBUUO) X|BMIPIS
Si91i1iEQ ON :SJ3LIRY ¥Rg
UOI1oNJISqO ON :SUOIIdINIISqO V39 _
65'2 :(%) ado|s sso1) T°0 :(%) @dojs Sujuuny _
1uelsIsas difs Jo ‘9|gels ‘wuty 10U 8BNS 1UOIIPUO) ¥RY
S2A :24eS ¥'ZE Ayl S|
SSedH/uia sjedaleiN vigd
1eale yi3 g B S3U3AaId Jeym

ON :eaJe yigg e 31ay) S|

:3|qISSaNY NPayIs

ON
UOIINIISqO UBIYSEL] :9|qISSa3IIY UBIYSEeJ |
ON :uOnINIISqO Yyauag SaA  :9|qISsalIy youag

3|INpay2s sng ‘(Alred pig) youag sanuswy
1sod u8is dois snq psepueis :afeudis

saA :Apoas10) pajuno udis SuoN :ydieH/adAL qin)

QUON spJezeH

U0I1393531UL JO SPIS JBJ UO 1924151y :UOIIISIIU[ O} UOIIEI|DY
BUE| NJY}-[IABJI B U] :UOIIRIOT] Sng
Aempeou Jo Japjnoys pasedun ue ug :uoliesoq dois

Tr6v99°08- :apnuduoy

C0E09¢'8C @pniie]

102

ises)

punoqisam

punoqise3
€57 98ed

oloyd |ewawa|ddng punoqyinos punoqy3iJoN

© 00b'8$ 150D [e10L
¢ A1oyes

‘91§ Hjuey

T Aupqissa2oy (Juliods

1T €10l g :diysepry G- 1150) ¥ :|euonesadQ

7 :uny Jad diysiapry afeisay

q4n3
pasiey ON ‘sBujuiep 91qe1d31a( ‘31q1Ssadde 10U 3NP3AYS ueldwod Jou eaie SuiySie pue Suipieog  :saJnjesd Juedwod-uoN

ISWI3Y X14 )2AND

punoqyINos :uondang oN :uendwo) yay ON :XI14 %20

SL1dV dO-0D 8 ¥d YIAIM VNVYNVE N :uonesol

L0071 Qi



*UOI3235133Ul 3Y3
01 d01S 343 193UUOD 0} 3|EMBPIS 4O 09 SABJ ‘T DI0U 335 'B3Je Y'3g U} 04
QN3 9 PasieJ B Ylim qels 8X,5 [9A3| B dAB "UOIIINIISUOD 3pun do3s SNg :SUORPUIWWOIY

|eIJ3WWO0) /31O :S103eIaUD dl)

:U01199UU0) 3]qISSIIY :(ssydu1} quny woiy asueysiq

10JU| JIeYd|aaym 1uonipuo) 13)3ys ON :3Y3Ys
:a0euns dwey qun) :adojs dwey qun)

:dwey qun) 1e uollsues) yloows oN :dwey gin)
:Suiusem 9jqerdneq vz IYIpIM jIN4 91qe19813Q

:uoilipuo) Suluiep sjqerarsg :Suluiepn s|ge1darag
Dj|EMSSO0I) Pa123310.d ON j|emssos) pel

:(193)) YIPIM HlemapIs |

ON :uoneas|3j ul aSuey) ,b/T 1U0I1IDUUO) }|BMIPIS _ ﬂm

uoldNIISHO ON :SUOIPNIISGO V'3Y
£7 %) adojs ssox) 20 (%) ado[s Suruuny
1ue3sisal dijs 1o ‘a|qels ‘wJiy 10U 9IBLING (UOIIPUOY) V'Re
SDA 18Jes g 9yl S|
SSelD /11 S|edeW v'Rg

‘BaJe ygyg e sjuaa3aid 1eym _
SDA :edJE YIRg B 243U] S|

:3)qISs920Yy SNpayss |
1uoNINIISqO uedysel| 19|qiss339y uBdYsel) |
V/N :uononisqo yousg ¥/N  :9|qI15s930y Youag
QUON :SaRIUdWY
1s0d u8is dois snq piepuels :aeudis |
s9A :Aj303110) pawuno usis B9UON :ydieH/adAL qun)

JUON sprezeHq
UOI1D35131U JO 3PIS 84 UO 193J15 1Y :UOI}ISSIIIU| 0} UOKIED|IY
SUB| NIY}-|SABIY B U :UOI1BI0T SNg

Aempeo. jo sap|noys paaedun ue ug :uone’o] dois |

aew 1/2169°08- :apnuduo]

YELESE'8T tapnuIeT

1SEED
2B

punogisam punogqise3

103

0104 |euawajddng

punoqyinos punoqyuon

q4nD pasiey oN ‘sBusuiepn 3|ge3dsIng ‘w

008°9$ :150D |EI0]  b/S Djuey

0 :s0) v :jeuonesadp 0 Aloges - :ANpQISsaddY Suliods

Z :uny Jad diysiapiy aSeiany

dwos jou eaJe Suiysie pue Buipseog  :sainjead juendwo)-uon

ISWIa| Xi4 ¥2InD
ON :juendwo) vay ON X134 33D

1S YSOWNTd S '8 QY A¥YIGNILHOS :uoneso] 0T0TT :al




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting
September 26, 2024

ITEM V.B.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/ Old Business

PROJECT: 258 N. Grove Street Commercial Fagade Improvements

Requested Action: Progress Presentation & Tour Payment Approval or Possible Extension

Summary Explanation & Background:

Location: 258 N. Grove

Application Date: July 29, 2021

Extension Expiration Date September 2024
Applicant: John and Joan Sinatra

Site End Use: Offices for Tradewind Builders
Original Estimated Project Cost: $142,000

Project Description:

Construct a new Front Entry with Hardie board siding, paint, and trim out, adding cedar gables and
a new roof. Redesign parking area to comply with Brevard County Code utilizing pavers, concrete,
required landscaping, French drainage, and eight new parking spaces.

Tradewind Builders is now in its 27th year of operations, designing and building custom, unique
homes and renovation projects. A tour of their new offices demonstrates their innovation and
approach. Every [project they work on is different. They excel in bringing unique ideas and dreams
to reality, completing hundreds of room additions and interior, exterior, bath, and kitchen remodels
all over Brevard County.

This project is nearing completion. The MIRA Board has been invited to tour the facility. Cheryl
Hurren is reviewing an invoice for payment, and the project has substantially met or exceeded
expenditure thresholds.

Fiscal Impact $25,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Documentation

1Q




h
- COMM

SRCIAL FACADE

PROVEMENT

“ IM
Bvae

Joan & John Sinatra

Owners of: TWB Inc./ TRADE WIND BUILDERS
258 N. Grove Street, Metritt Park Place

105




/X\TO are wer .__Ilu: EE.”&\\.VF
e L RADL WIN])

-wc:hvm-ﬂm i
“* Owners of TWB since 2016

“* 5 full-time dedicated local employees
*%* Help to develop and renovate Merritt Island homes and businesses
%* Local and loyal to Merritt Island since 1997

** Sponsors for MIHS, MILA and EDGEWOOD

** Proud supporters of Sherriff Wayne Ivey

106




A. REMOVAL OF BLIGHT

Does yout proposed project visually demonstrate the removal of blight as a result of
rehabilitation work due to distepair? Will it aesthetically enhance the property?

YES. The blight from a derelict septic system and the non-removal of dirt

and non-maintained driveway will be permanently restored.

YES. The existing buildings are basic block structures with non-hurricane

compliant windows & doors. Other than stucco, there were never any
aesthetic improvements done to these structures since the ‘80s. Adding
Hardie Plank to the exterior of both structures and replacing the windows
& doors will improve the facade dramatically, as well as improve the value
of the property.

TR TR

107

=3




in::'r...:-_A‘u
BUILDERS










qp\ \WQHNQWL ﬁo..«\.ﬁw \mooh@_o.\

<+ Renouvattens .

a5z bs. Groose S+



<

112

Current parking on abandoned septic field

&

¢ &

®

No curbing

no safety measures for pedestrians




COMMUNITY IMPACT

Does your property demonstrate an overall fagade improvement that encourages a safe,
convenient environment, thus promoting economic development in the community?

YES. The current entry is 74" tall. This limits the way people who are taller
enter the building as well as a hinderance for delivery drivers.

We propose a much taller entry, allowing for convenience and safety when
entering the building.

We will also eliminate the excess sand and crushed shell that is unlevel and
makes wheelchaitr access difficult.

The parking will also encourage people to enter a well-designed location
with customer safety and ease of entry in mind.

E Garai

113

12




114

1l



A

115

CURRENT ENTRY

%“* NOTE: Slope of roof comes down low
enough for most taller individuals to hit their
head.

*s* NOTE: Crushed shell and sand are blown into
wheelchair accessible area, making it difficult to

mmwb access.




116

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATION

Does your proposed project demonstrate appropriate environmental design and green build
practices that meet the objectives of environmental conservation and current green industry
standards? Please explain what design measures have been used.

| *

drainage system for the project. Emphasis on green space and landscaping
is a priofity.

Using pervious pavers for entire parking area

%* Drainage pond and green space to be designed into build

RO R Wl o Y = e e L P S -




277

117

SAFETY, SECURITY & CONVENIENCE

Does your proposed project contain elements that encourage a safe and
convenient business environment for customers and employees?
Please identify those elements.

YES. Level out parking area

*%* Add more paved spaces to front area. Reduce distance to next available public

parking space 150° away
** Added security lighting to be included
** Added hurricane damage prevention to the building
** Better accessibility for handicapped patrons

*%* Better drainage of lot when rains come

v



118
A

ARCHITECTURAL or HISTORICAL PRESERVATION |

Does your proposed project demonstrate the preservation or restoration of historical |
or architectural heritage elements of the property? |

; . _

Please 1dentify those elements. |
. |

“%* Previously this structure was a house, then a window tint business, then a
mixed bag of retail shops. Never updated, never improved.

** We are adding over $150,000 of improvements to this location. We are
adding locally inspired architectural elements, siding, cupola, weathervane
etc. Hoping to inspire others to do so, with help from MIRA.

= = = r . = = - - - - - e = = n—— - — e



ENHANCED LANDSCAPING

Does your proposed project contain environmental conservation measures

such as low impact design, stormwater management, Florida friendly material
and irrigation alternatives? Please be specific.

- W YES. Erin Trauger has designed a storm water retention system for the
. property to self contain any run-off.

»* Using pervious pavers and French drain systems to direct flow of watet.

_. ** Installing Florida native trees and landscape materials to insure viability
of plants.

119

29




